
Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, Florida  34953 
772-462-1593    www.stlucietpo.org 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Wednesday, April 3, 2024 
2:00 pm 

Public Participation/Accessibility 

Participation in Person: Public comments may be provided in person at the meeting. 

Persons who require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act 

(ADA) or persons who require translation services (free of charge) should contact the 

St. Lucie TPO at 772-462-1593 at least five days prior to the meeting. Persons who are 

hearing or speech impaired may use the Florida Relay System by dialing 711. 

Participation by Webconference: Using a computer or smartphone, register at 

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/7629035534494644053. After the registration is 

completed, a confirmation will be emailed containing instructions for joining the 

webconference. Public comments may be provided through the webconference chatbox 

during the meeting.  

Written and Telephone Comments: Comment by email to TPOAdmin@stlucieco.org; by 

regular mail to the St. Lucie TPO, 466 SW Port St. Lucie Boulevard, Suite 111, 

Port St. Lucie, Florida 34953; or call 772-462-1593 until 1:00 pm on April 3, 2024. 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call

4. Comments from the Public

5. Comments from Advisory Committee Members (TAC/CAC/BPAC)

6. Approval of Agenda

7. Approval of Meeting Summary

• February 7, 2024 Regular Board Meeting

8. Action Items

8a. Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) 2024 Grant 

Application: Review of a TAP grant application for the 2024 cycle. 

Action: Endorse the TAP grant application, endorse with conditions, or 
do not endorse. 

1

mailto:TPOAdmin@stlucieco.org


April 3, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Page 2 of 2 

 

 

8b. FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 Draft Unified Planning Work 
Program (UPWP) and Proposed Budget: Review and adoption of 

the draft UPWP and proposed budget for the St. Lucie TPO for 
FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26. 

 
 Action: Adopt the FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 draft UPWP and proposed 

budget, adopt with conditions, or do not adopt. 

 
8c. Resolution No. 24-01 for the Metropolitan Planning 

Organization (MPO) Agreement: Adoption of Resolution No. 24-01 
authorizing the execution of an MPO Agreement for the receipt of 
Federal and State funds to support the implementation of the UPWP. 

 
 Action: Adopt Resolution 24-01, adopt with conditions, or do not 

adopt. 
 

9. Discussion Items 

 
9a. Community Profiles Update: An analysis of Census data for the 

TPO area that informs and guides the TPO’s public outreach to 
disadvantaged communities. 

 
Action: Discuss and provide comments to Staff. 

 

10. FDOT Comments 
 

11. Recommendations/Comments by Members 
 
12. TPO Staff Comments 

 
13. Next Meeting: The next St. Lucie TPO Board Meeting is a regular meeting 

scheduled for 2:00 pm on Wednesday, June 5, 2024. 
 
14. Adjourn 
 

 
NOTICES 
 

The St. Lucie TPO satisfies the requirements of various nondiscrimination laws and regulations 
including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Public participation is welcome without regard to race, 
color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability, income, or family status. Persons wishing to 

express their concerns about nondiscrimination should contact Marceia Lathou, the Title VI/ADA 
Coordinator of the St. Lucie TPO, at 772-462-1593 or via email at lathoum@stlucieco.org.  
 

Items not included on the agenda may also be heard in consideration of the best interests of the 
public’s health, safety, welfare, and as necessary to protect every person’s right of access. If any 
person decides to appeal any decision made by the St. Lucie TPO with respect to any matter 
considered at this meeting, that person shall need a record of the proceedings, and for such a 
purpose, that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which 
includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 

Kreyòl Ayisyen: Si ou ta renmen resevwa enfòmasyon sa a nan lang Kreyòl Ayisyen, tanpri rele 
nimewo 772-462-1593. 
 
Español: Si usted desea recibir esta informaciòn en español, por favor llame al 772-462-1593. 

2



 

 

Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 

 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd. Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, Florida  34953 
772-462-1593      www.stlucietpo.org 

 

 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

 

DATE:  Wednesday, February 7, 2024 
 

TIME:  2:00 pm 
_____________________________________________________________ 

 
MEETING SUMMARY 

 

1. Call to Order 
  

Chairman Dzadovsky called the meeting to order at 2:05 pm. 
 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
 Chairman Dzadovsky led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
 

3. Roll Call 
 

Chairman Dzadovsky greeted the members and welcomed Councilman 
Bonna. The roll was called, and a quorum was confirmed with the 

following members present: 

 
Members Present Representing  

Commissioner Chris Dzadovsky, Chair St. Lucie County 
Commissioner Curtis Johnson, Jr., Vice Chair  City of Fort Pierce 

Councilman Anthony Bonna City of Port St. Lucie 
Robert Driscoll Community Transit 

Commissioner Jamie Fowler St. Lucie County 
Jack Kelly St. Lucie Public Schools 

Commissioner Larry Leet St. Lucie County 
Councilwoman Stephanie Morgan City of Port St. Lucie 

Commissioner Cathy Townsend St. Lucie County 
 

3



February 7, 2024 St. Lucie TPO Regular Board Meeting Page 2 of 12 

 

DRAFT 

Others Present Representing 
Kyle Bowman St. Lucie TPO 

Peter Buchwald St. Lucie TPO 
Yi Ding  St. Lucie TPO 

Marceia Lathou  St. Lucie TPO 
Stephanie Torres St. Lucie TPO 

Rachel Harrison Recording Specialist 
Ciara Forbes TPO/County Attorney 

James Brown Florida's Turnpike 
Kelly Budhu Florida Department of 

Transportation (FDOT) 
Adolfo Covelli St. Lucie County 

Patrick Dayan St. Lucie County 
Jeannelia Liu Caltran 

Lucine Martens (via web) Martin Metropolitan 

Planning Organization 
Tina McKinnie Caltran 

Tony Norat FDOT 
Colt Schwerdt City of Port St. Lucie 

Emily Seitter City of Port St. Lucie 
Raj Shanmugam FDOT 

 
 

4. Comments from the Public – None. 
 

 
5. Comments from Advisory Committee Members (TAC/CAC/BPAC) 

– None.  
 

 

6. Approval of Agenda 
 

* MOTION by Councilwoman Morgan to approve the agenda. 
 

** SECONDED by Mr. Kelly Carried UNANIMOUSLY 
 

 
7. Approval of Meeting Summary 

· December 6, 2023 Regular Board Meeting 

 
* MOTION by Vice Chairman Johnson to approve the Meeting Summary. 

 
** SECONDED by Commissioner Fowler Carried UNANIMOUSLY 

 
 

4



February 7, 2024 St. Lucie TPO Regular Board Meeting Page 3 of 12 

 

DRAFT 

8.  Consent Agenda 
 

8a. Appointments to the Bicycle-Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee (BPAC) and Local Coordinating Board for the 

Transportation Disadvantaged (LCB): Appointments to the 
BPAC and LCB. 

 
*  MOTION by Commissioner Leet to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
** SECONDED by Vice Chairman Johnson Carried UNANIMOUSLY 

 
 

9. Action Items 
 

9a.  Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Adjusted Urban 

Area Boundary (UAB): Review of the draft FHWA Adjusted UAB 
for the TPO area based on the 2020 Census. 

  
Mr. Buchwald explained that Urban Areas represented developed areas 

with a population density above a certain threshold as identified by the 
U.S. Census Bureau following each decennial Census. He indicated that 

FDOT was required to update the Urban Area Boundary (UAB) and the 
Functional Classifications for Florida roadways in coordination with 

FHWA and Metropolitan Planning Organizations since the population 
counts from the 2020 Census had been made available. Mr. Buchwald 

invited Mr. Shanmugam to continue, and Mr. Shanmugam introduced 
his colleagues from Caltran before offering definitions of Urban Areas, 

UABs, and Functional Classifications. He described the process for 
updating UABs as well as the expected timeline for the local update and 

then explained several considerations regarding UAB adjustments and 

their implications. Mr. Shanmugam presented the raw and smoothed 
UAB for St. Lucie County, provided a comparison between the 2020 and 

2010 UABs, and concluded with several website resources for further 
information.  

 
In response to Commissioner Townsend’s question, Mr. Buchwald 

indicated that the smoothed UAB in the northern part of the County 
extended west to Emerson Avenue and then to Kings Highway as the 

boundary progressed south. Ms. McKinnie added that the boundary’s 
placement had been partially influenced by a new development in the 

vicinity. Vice Chairman Johnson requested clarification, and 
Mr. Shanmugam described how the UAB analysis for the 2020 data had 

been affected by the recent emphasis on Census blocks as opposed to 
Census tracts. Mr. Shanmugam further explained that planned 

developments were not usually factored into boundary placement unless 

5



February 7, 2024 St. Lucie TPO Regular Board Meeting Page 4 of 12 

 

DRAFT 

ground had been broken for construction, noting that the UAB could be 
adjusted in the event of significant urban development. Ms. McKinnie 

then expounded upon the definition of urban areas and how it impacted 
boundary placement, with Mr. Buchwald commenting that local agency 

staffs had also been consulted during the UAB development process. 
Chairman Dzadovsky affirmed the Board’s commitment to managing 

and planning for the County’s growth. 
 

In response to Mr. Kelly’s question, Ms. McKinnie explained that the 
analysis of the 2020 Census data had been more refined than that for 

previous datasets, which meant that a past designation of a given area 
as urban did not automatically result in the same area being so 

designated for the present UAB adjustment. Mr. Kelly inquired about 
population changes in the County during the preceding decade, and 

Ms. McKinnie indicated that she would send that information to 

Mr. Buchwald for dissemination to the members. 
 

* MOTION by Commissioner Townsend to concur with the draft FHWA 
Adjusted UAB for the TPO area. 

 
** SECONDED by Vice Chairman Johnson Carried UNANIMOUSLY 

 
9b.  Amendments #8 to the FY 2023/24 – FY 2027/28 

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP): Adoption of TIP 
Amendment #8 to install advanced traffic management 

equipment on Midway Road from Selvitz Road to U.S. Highway 1. 
  

Mr. Buchwald explained that FDOT District 4 had added a new project 
to its Work Program subsequent to the TPO’s adoption of the current TIP 

and was requesting that the TIP be amended to reflect the change. 

Mr. Ding continued with a description of the proposed amendment, 
which would add the preliminary engineering phase of the installation of 

various advanced traffic management equipment along Midway Road 
between Selvitz Road and U.S. Highway 1, including fiber optic cable, 

traffic cameras, and adaptive signal control. Mr. Ding concluded with 
details regarding the cost of and funding source for the project phase, 

noting that the project would not impact the fiscal constraint of the TIP.  
 

* MOTION by Commissioner Townsend to adopt TIP Amendment #8. 
 

** SECONDED by Councilwoman Morgan Carried UNANIMOUSLY 
 

6



February 7, 2024 St. Lucie TPO Regular Board Meeting Page 5 of 12 

 

DRAFT 

9c.  2024 Safety Performance Targets: Adoption of the 2024 
Safety Performance Targets and Interim Benchmarks for the TPO. 

 
Mr. Buchwald explained that State DOTs must annually establish 

statewide targets for safety performance measures according to Federal 
Transportation Performance Management requirements and invited 

Mr. Ding to continue. Mr. Ding noted that FDOT had renewed its 
commitment to zero deaths and serious injuries for 2024 by setting 

Vision Zero targets for all five safety performance measures, indicating 
that the TPO could either support them or establish its own targets. He 

described how interim benchmarks were used to demonstrate progress 
toward the final targets and presented the 2022 safety performance 

results for both FDOT and the TPO. Mr. Ding then presented the 
2024 Safety Performance Interim Benchmarks being recommended for 

adoption, explaining how they had been developed based on both 

historical and projected safety performance data. He concluded with an 
overview of local efforts at promoting roadway safety through speed 

management. 
 

In response to Commissioner Leet’s question, Mr. Ding indicated that 
FDOT did not distinguish accidents involving citations for driving while 

intoxicated when reporting its data. 
 

Chairman Dzadovsky remarked on the need to maintain lower speeds 
on constrained corridors like Midway Road between Oleander Avenue 

and 25th Street, with Commissioner Townsend identifying Indrio Road 
east of Kings Highway as another example of a constrained corridor. 

Councilwoman Morgan reported a number of complaints she had seen 
on social media regarding the speed limit on Midway Road, commenting 

on the possibility of raising the limit for the segment west of the 

entrance to White City Park.  
 

Discussion ensued regarding the connection between speed reduction 
and safety. Mr. Buchwald reported the finding of the TPO’s 2021 Speed 

Kills Analysis that most fatal crashes in the TPO area occurred on 
roadways with a posted speed limit of 40 miles per hour or higher 

despite a general belief, as indicated by a recent AAA survey, of 
speeding not being dangerous. He commented on the potential of 

automated speed enforcement to supplement the efforts of traditional 
enforcement, noting also the roles of roadway engineering and public 

education in improving safety. Several members remarked on the 
impossibility of legislating safe driver behavior, and Mr. Buchwald 

elaborated on the importance of designing roadways to naturally 
encourage slower driving speeds. Chairman Dzadovsky cited funding as 

another element to consider going forward, noting that the availability 

7



February 7, 2024 St. Lucie TPO Regular Board Meeting Page 6 of 12 

 

DRAFT 

of Federal and State funds was often contingent upon certain 
requirements. 

 
Mr. Kelly questioned whether any studies had been conducted to 

document the effect of a speed limit reduction initiated for several 
corridors by the Port St. Lucie City Council more than a decade earlier. 

Mr. Buchwald indicated that he was unaware of any relevant existing 
studies but noted that the recent speed limit reduction on Indian River 

Drive would provide an opportunity to conduct one. Commissioner 
Townsend reported that the impacts of the speed limit reduction on 

Indian River Drive were already being monitored, with the early data 
suggesting improved safety results for the corridor. Mr. Kelly requested 

that he be provided with the results if a study were completed in the 
future.  

 

In answer to Commissioner Leet’s question, Mr. Buchwald explained that 
roundabouts were not usually deemed suitable for high-speed roadways 

despite being generally considered as safer than traffic lights. 
 

* MOTION by Commissioner Leet to adopt the proposed 2024 Safety 
Performance Targets and Interim Benchmarks. 

 
** SECONDED by Commissioner Fowler Carried UNANIMOUSLY 

 
9d.  Public Participation Plan (PPP) 2023 Annual Evaluation: 

Review of the PPP 2023 Annual Evaluation. 
 

Mr. Buchwald introduced Ms. Lathou, who provided an overview of the 
TPO’s public participation efforts and their intended outcomes. She 

explained the rationale and methodology for reviewing their 

effectiveness as compared with the baseline figures and then presented 
the results of the evaluation with respect to the online, in-person, and 

Title VI/Environmental Justice outreach activities conducted during 
2023. Ms. Lathou noted the intent to update the PPP in 2024 and 

concluded with an overview of best practices for public involvement 
programs. 

 
In response to Councilwoman Morgan’s comments, Ms. Lathou 

explained that the length of the TPO’s online and in-person surveys 
depended upon the subject, with Mr. Buchwald describing the range as 

generally being between five and 10 questions. Ms. Lathou reported that 
the survey regarding the future express bus service to West Palm Beach 

had been shared more than 1,000 times on Facebook, resulting in more 
than 500 completed surveys. Ms. Lathou then elaborated on the 

importance of maintaining a strategic blend of outreach activities to 

8



February 7, 2024 St. Lucie TPO Regular Board Meeting Page 7 of 12 

 

DRAFT 

ensure a high degree of inclusivity. Mr. Buchwald noted the significant 
effort put forth by Ms. Lathou with respect to the design and 

implementation of the TPO’s outreach, and Commissioner Townsend 
commended Ms. Lathou’s efforts. 

 
Mr. Kelly initiated a discussion regarding the relative efficacy of 

in-person versus online activities, inquiring in particular as to the staff’s 
expectations for the upcoming workshops to be held in connection with 

the Transit Development Plan (TDP) Major Update. Ms. Lathou and 
Mr. Buchwald explained that in-person activities tended to generate 

lower participation than online activities, although the ratios depended 
upon the subject of the activity. They described the TPO’s efforts to 

maximize outreach coverage in terms of both modality and geography, 
not only to ensure the comprehensive distribution of information but to 

ensure that the resulting public input represented the TPO area as 

equitably as possible. 
 

Vice Chairman Johnson commented on the diversity of the communities 
within the TPO area and asked how the staff conducted outreach to 

speakers of other languages. Ms. Lathou explained how surveys and 
announcements published on the TPO’s website were accessible in many 

languages, while interpretation services were provided at select 
in-person activities for speakers of languages like Spanish. Vice 

Chairman Johnson noted the influence of certain community 
organizations and suggested that the TPO leverage those existing social 

networks to communicate with non-English-speaking residents to 
overcome the barriers to internet and employment access experienced 

by some members of that population. In response, Ms. Lathou explained 
that an important function of the Local Coordinating Board for the 

Transportation Disadvantaged (LCB) was to distribute information 

regarding the TPO’s plans and programs, as the membership comprised 
opinion leaders for various communities as well as representatives of 

public agencies and human services organizations. 
 

Councilwoman Morgan noted that FDOT was hosting an open house at 
the Havert L. Fenn Center a few hours after the TDP Major Update 

workshop. 
 

* MOTION by Councilwoman Morgan to accept the PPP 2023 Annual 
Evaluation. 

 
** SECONDED by Commissioner Leet Carried UNANIMOUSLY 

 
 

9



February 7, 2024 St. Lucie TPO Regular Board Meeting Page 8 of 12 

 

DRAFT 

9e.  Transportation Regional Incentive Program (TRIP) 2024 
Grant Application and Amendment to the 2023/24 List of 

Priority Projects (LOPP): Review of a TRIP grant application for 
the 2024 cycle and an amendment to the 2023/24 LOPP for the 

grant application. 
 

Mr. Buchwald explained the history of TRIP and identified the Treasure 
Coast Transportation Council (TCTC) as the local entity created for 

pursuing TRIP funds. He indicated the types of projects for which TRIP 
funding could be used along with the percentage of project costs that 

could be covered before detailing the 2024 application proposed by the 
City of Port St. Lucie for the widening of St. Lucie West Boulevard 

between Peacock and Cashmere Boulevards. Mr. Buchwald noted that 
the project would be ready for construction at the time of the largest 

amount of TRIP grant funding availability for District 4 and that the City 

was requesting $11 million in grant funding toward the overall project 
cost of $22 million. He finally summarized the LOPP amendment that is 

proposed for the project. 
 

Chairman Dzadovsky remarked that the project would serve as an 
opportunity to improve traffic flow on one of the County’s most 

congested corridors. 
 

* MOTION by Commissioner Fowler to endorse the TRIP grant application 
and adopt the amendment to the LOPP. 

 
** SECONDED by Councilwoman Morgan Carried UNANIMOUSLY 

 
 

10.  Information Items 

 
 10a. Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) Policy 

Positions and Proposed State Legislation: Information on 
FDOT policy positions and proposed State legislation potentially 

affecting the Florida Metropolitan Planning Organizations.  
 

 Mr. Buchwald reported that FDOT had provided notice of two new policy 
positions, both in response to provisions of the Federal Bipartisan 

Infrastructure Law, that could potentially affect Florida MPOs. He 
identified the first as consisting of FDOT’s decision not to participate in 

the continued efforts of the Carbon Reduction Program (CRP) and 
consequently declining to submit a Statewide Carbon Reduction 

Strategy (CRS) in favor of maintaining its focus on building roads and 
bridges. Mr. Buchwald noted that several CRP projects originating from 

the TPO’s own CRS were still programmed in FDOT’s Draft Tentative 

10



February 7, 2024 St. Lucie TPO Regular Board Meeting Page 9 of 12 

 

DRAFT 

Work Program. He continued to explain that FDOT had also announced 
its filing of a complaint in Federal court requesting injunctive relief from 

the Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions Rule, which would require State 
DOTs and MPOs to establish declining targets for reducing carbon 

emissions and then report on the progress in meeting the targets. 
Mr. Buchwald indicated that the TPO was prepared to develop GHG 

targets for the Board’s consideration by the relevant deadline regardless 
of FDOT’s final position on the matter. 

 
 Mr. Buchwald then summarized the provisions of a bill proposed in the 

Florida Legislature that would significantly increase FDOT’s oversight of 
Florida MPOs, requiring FDOT to review MPOs’ Long Range 

Transportation Plans as well as their general performance to ensure that 
MPOs were satisfactorily serving their communities according to several 

criteria identified in the language of the bill. Mr. Buchwald noted that 

the legislation also proposed the dissolution of the Florida MPO Advisory 
Council (MPOAC), reporting that the MPOAC had responded to the 

proposal by addressing some misinformation presented during the bill’s 
introduction and facilitating discussions of the bill’s implications for 

Florida MPOs with State representatives and other organizations. 
 

 In answer to Commissioner Leet’s question, Mr. Buchwald explained that 
the TPO and FDOT may lose funding for not complying with the 

provisions of the CRP but would incur no penalty for noncompliance with 
the GHG Emissions Rule. Mr. Buchwald added that the TPO was prepared 

to comply with both requirements. Chairman Dzadovsky commented on 
the need to pursue all available funds for the sake of constituents. In 

response to Mr. Buchwald’s request for clarification, the members 
confirmed a consensus to move forward with the establishment of GHG 

targets. 

  
 Mr. Kelly opined on the confusion potentially created for the public from 

the use of both “Transportation Planning Organization” and 
“Metropolitan Planning Organization” to refer to the same type of 

agency. Mr. Buchwald explained that “Metropolitan Planning 
Organization” was the general name for such agencies, with that term 

being employed in Federal law, although he acknowledged that there 
seemed to be confusion even at the State legislative level regarding the 

congruence of the two names. 
 

 Chairman Dzadovsky expressed his confidence in the expertise of 
Mr. Buchwald and the rest of the TPO staff and indicated his assurance 

that the Board members would be well represented as these issues were 
resolved. 

 

11



February 7, 2024 St. Lucie TPO Regular Board Meeting Page 10 of 12 

 

DRAFT 

11.  Correspondence 
 

 11a. Council on Aging of St. Lucie, Inc./Community Transit 
Correspondence dated February 1, 2024: Notice of 

withdrawal of membership on the St. Lucie TPO Board pursuant to 
the TPO request.  

 
 Mr. Buchwald reported the receipt of correspondence from the Council 

on Aging of St. Lucie, Inc. withdrawing Community Transit’s 
membership on the TPO Board. He then outlined the remaining steps in 

the withdrawal process. 
 

 In response to Chairman Dzadovsky’s question, Mr. Buchwald indicated 
that the Council on Aging would still participate in the TPO’s 

decision-making processes via representation on the Technical Advisory 

Committee and LCB. 
 

 
12. FDOT Comments – Mr. Norat acknowledged the potential confusion 

presented by the inconsistent use of “TPO” and “MPO” to refer to the 
same type of organization but opined that the latter moniker better 

communicated the breadth of functions carried out by such agencies. 
He also concurred with Chairman Dzadovsky’s confidence in the 

expertise of Mr. Buchwald and the TPO staff, noting that the St. Lucie 
TPO performed at or above the level of the other four MPOs overseen 

by Mr. Norat’s division and commending the leadership of both 
Mr. Buchwald and the Board. 

 
 In response to Chairman Dzadovsky’s request, Mr. Norat indicated that 

he would provide the members with an update on the status of the 

improvements being made to the bridge at I-95 and St. Lucie West 
Boulevard as well as the North Causeway Bridge project. 

 
 

13. Recommendations/Comments by Members – Commissioner 
Townsend referenced a previous discussion regarding the potential 

conflict of interest arising from the Treasure Coast Regional Planning 
Council’s (TCRPC lobbing for Stuart’s proposal for the Treasure Coast 

Brightline Station even though another member jurisdiction likewise 
submitted a proposal, namely the City of Fort Pierce. She invited 

Ms. Forbes to share her findings on the matter, and Ms. Forbes reported 
that her review of the organization’s Interlocal Agreement presented no 

language pertaining to conflicts of interest. She indicated that member 
entities could send letters objecting to the TCRPC’s handling of the 

matter and requesting that any issues potentially causing two member 

12



February 7, 2024 St. Lucie TPO Regular Board Meeting Page 11 of 12 

 

DRAFT 

entities to have opposing interests be brought before the Council in the 
future. She also relayed the County attorney’s recommendation for 

County administration to contact the appropriate TCRPC representative 
directly to ascertain the Council’s perspective on the matter. 

 
 Councilwoman Morgan recounted a conversation with Kim Delaney, the 

TCRPC’s Director of Strategic Development and Policy, in which 
Ms. Delaney informed her that the organization had been hired by 

Martin County to facilitate but not endorse Stuart’s Brightline station 
proposal.  

 
 Discussion ensued regarding the propriety of the TCRPC’s actions 

considering that all member entities paid dues to the organization. 
Mr. Buchwald questioned whether the TCRPC could verify that no 

member dues had been allocated toward the TCRPC’s efforts on behalf 

of the Stuart Brightline proposal. Responding to Chairman Dzadovsky’s 
question, Commissioner Townsend described how the TCRPC typically 

managed the allocation of funding. She and other members expressed 
their disapproval regarding both the Council’s involvement in 

Brightline’s station selection process and the Council’s lack of 
transparency, emphasizing their support for the City of Fort Pierce and 

their intent to voice their displeasure to the TCRPC. Councilman Bonna 
noted that the issue was not about a possible misuse of communal funds 

as much as it was about the Council appearing to favor one member 
over another, with Mr. Buchwald adding that the competitive nature of 

this matter rendered it very different from other occasions when the 
TCRPC accepted contracts on behalf of municipalities. 

 
 Ms. Forbes indicated her willingness to discuss the matter further with 

Commissioner Townsend after the next TCRPC meeting.  

 
Commissioner Townsend summarized the proposals that had been 

submitted for the Treasure Coast Brightline station and commented on 
the need for Board members to stay apprised of developments during 

the selection process. She concurred with the County attorney’s advice 
to speak directly with the TCRPC before moving forward with letters of 

objection so as to prevent any animosity between the Council and local 
jurisdictions. She also recommended that the Council be asked to 

disclose in the future any action taken on behalf of specific 
municipalities. Chairman Dzadovsky suggested that Commissioner 

Townsend request that an item be placed on the next TCRPC meeting 
agenda to discuss her concerns. 

 

13



February 7, 2024 St. Lucie TPO Regular Board Meeting Page 12 of 12 

 

DRAFT 

Chairwoman Morgan opined on the need to remove the pedestrian 
bridge near the St. Lucie County Fairgrounds, noting that its appearance 

had benefited from a recent repainting. 
 

 
14. TPO Staff Comments – Ms. Torres announced an upcoming SUN Trail 

public workshop to discuss the Port of Fort Pierce Connector Feasibility 
Study, outlining the goals of the workshop as well as the function of the 

Connector itself. In response to Chairman Dzadovsky’s comment 
regarding the SUN Trail alignment along Old Dixie Highway, Ms. Torres 

described the four options under consideration for connecting the trail 
to North 2nd Street, with Mr. Buchwald clarifying the need to determine 

how the trail would cross the railroad tracks. 
 

 Vice Chairman Johnson noted his position on the Port Advisory 

Committee before explaining that the option connecting Old Dixie 
Highway to the Avenue M extension appeared to be the best 

incorporation of the City’s and County’s plans for the area. He also 
expressed his excitement at the prospect of providing a connection 

between the Lincoln Park neighborhood and the coming development. 
In response to Vice Chairman Johnson’s inquiry, Ms. Torres described 

how the workshop would be advertised. 
 

 Chairman Dzadovsky questioned whether the Florida East Coast (FEC) 
Railway was involved in the conversation. Ms. Torres reported an 

upcoming meeting that would include FEC representatives as well as 
representatives from the County, TPO, FDOT, and the Cities of Fort 

Pierce and Port St. Lucie, with Mr. Buchwald noting the intent to discuss 
several rail-related needs in the TPO area. Chairman Dzadovsky 

cautioned the staff to expect resistance from the FEC representatives. 

 
 

15. Next Meeting: The next St. Lucie TPO Board Meeting is a regular 
meeting scheduled for 2:00 pm on Wednesday, April 3, 2024. 

 
 

16. Adjourn – The meeting was adjourned at 3:55 pm. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted:   Approved by: 

 
 

 ___________________  __________________________ 
 Rachel Harrison    Commissioner Chris Dzadovsky 

 Recording Specialist   Chairman 

14



Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 

 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, Florida  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
 

Board/Committee:  St. Lucie TPO Board 

 
Meeting Date: April 3, 2024 

 
Item Number: 8a 

 
Item Title: Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) 

2024 Grant Application 
 

Item Origination: 2024 TAP Grant Cycle 
 

UPWP Reference: Task 3.3 - Transportation Improvement Program 
 

Requested Action: Endorse the TAP grant application, endorse with 
conditions, or do not endorse. 

 

Staff Recommendation: Based on the recommendations of the 
TPO Advisory Committees and the inclusion of 

the project in the 2023/24 TA Priority Project 
List, it is recommended that the Sunrise 

Boulevard Sidewalk Project be endorsed for the 
allocation of the TAP funding from the 

2024 grant cycle. 
 

 
Attachments 

· Staff Report 
· 2023/24 Transportation Alternatives Priority Project List 

· Sunrise Boulevard Sidewalk Project Application Excerpts 

15



 

Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 

 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, Florida  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

TO: St. Lucie TPO Board 

 
FROM: Peter Buchwald 

 Executive Director 
 

DATE: March 26, 2024 
 

SUBJECT: Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP)  
2024 Grant Application 

 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
The TAP provides funding to the St. Lucie TPO for the following:  

 

· Construction of on-road and off-road trail facilities for pedestrians, 
bicyclists, and other non-motorized modes; 

 
· Construction of infrastructure-related projects and systems that will 

provide safe routes for non-drivers, including children, older adults, and 
individuals with disabilities, to access daily needs; 

 
· Conversion of abandoned railroad corridors into trails for pedestrians, 

bicyclists, or other non-motorized modes; 
 

· Construction of turnouts, overlooks, and viewing areas; 
 

· Community improvement activities including the control/removal of 
outdoor advertising, preservation/rehabilitation of historic transportation 

facilities, vegetation management practices in rights-of-way, and 

archaeological activities relating to impacts from transportation projects; 
 

· Environmental mitigation activities including pollution prevention and 
abatement activities related to highway construction or runoff and 

activities that reduce vehicle-caused wildlife mortality; and, 
 

· Recreational Trails and Safe Routes to School Programs. 
 

16



March 26, 2024 Page 2 of 2 

 

 

The funding available for the 2024 TAP grant cycle for the St. Lucie TPO is at 
least $650,000 that will be programmed by the Florida Department of 

Transportation (FDOT) District 4 in Fiscal Year 2027/28. Candidate TAP 
Projects originate from the attached 2023/24 Transportation Alternatives 

(TA) Priority Project List. 
 

 
ANALYSIS 

 
An application (excerpts attached) was received for the 2024 TAP grant cycle 

from St. Lucie County for the Sunrise Boulevard Sidewalk Project which is 
included in the TPO's 2023/24 TA Priority Project List. The project consists of 

the construction of a six-foot wide, concrete-paved sidewalk from 
Bell Avenue to Canal 15 of the North St. Lucie River Water Control District as 

depicted in the attached project location map.  

 
The sidewalk will be approximately 0.52 miles in length and connect to the 

Bell Avenue Sidewalk from 25th Street to Sunrise Boulevard that was 
awarded TAP grant funding during the 2019 TAP grant cycle. The project is 

estimated to cost $1,103,773, and St. Lucie County is requesting a total of 
$1,010,890 of TAP grant funding. 

 
At their meetings during the week of March 18th, the TPO Advisory 

Committees recommended the endorsement of the Sunrise Boulevard 
Sidewalk Project for the allocation of the TAP funding from the 2024 grant 

cycle.  
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 

Based on the recommendations of the TPO Advisory Committees and the 
inclusion of the project in the 2023/24 TA Priority Project List, it is 

recommended that the Sunrise Boulevard Sidewalk Project be endorsed for 
the allocation of the TAP funding from the 2024 grant cycle. 

17



2023/24 LOPP Adopted June 7, 2023 Page 5 of 6 

 

 

Transportation Alternatives (TA) Projects 
 

2023/24 
Priority 
Ranking 

Score1 Facility 
Project Limits 

Project Description Project Source
2
 

Estimated 

Cost
2
 

2022/23 
Priority 
Ranking From To 

1 38.0 Peascock Trail Gatlin Boulevard Dreyfuss Boulevard 
Shared-Use Path: 1.0 
mile 

2023 TA Grant 
Application3  

$1,674,1744 11 

2 25.5 Easy Street US Highway 1 Silver Oak Drive Sidewalk-1.0 miles  $1,090,3966 2 

3 50.0 
Florida SUN Trail, Historic Fort 
Pierce Downtown Retrofit 

Georgia Avenue North State Route A1A 

Bicycle Boulevard, 
Roadway Section 
Connections, and 
Railroad Crossing 
Improvements 

TIP, Florida SUN 
Trail Grant, and 
St. Lucie WBN5 

TBD7 3 

4 42.5 Green River Parkway Trail Martin County Line Walton Road 
Resurfacing of 
Shared-Use Path: 
2.5 miles 

City of Port St. 
Lucie, Florida SUN 
Trail, and St. Lucie 
WBN 

$350,000 
Not 

Ranked 

4 42.5 Oleander Avenue Edwards Road South Market Avenue Sidewalk: 1.3 miles  $1,500,0006 7 

4 42.5 Oleander Avenue Saeger Avenue Beach Avenue Sidewalk: 1.4 miles  $1,650,0006 7 

7 42.0 Lakehurst Drive Bayshore Boulevard Airoso Boulevard Sidewalk: 1.3 miles 
Under design by City 
of Port St. Lucie 

$825,0008 9 

8 41.5 Indrio Road U.S. Highway 1 Old Dixie Highway Sidewalk: 0.2 miles  $225,0006 12 

9 40.5 Indrio Road Kings Highway U.S. Highway 1 Sidewalk: 2.6 miles  $3,050,7906 17 

10 40.0 Oleander Avenue Midway Road Saeger Avenue Sidewalk: 1.5 miles  $1,323,840  19 

11 36.5 Angle Road Kings Highway North 53rd Street Sidewalk: 1.3 miles  $1,461,5956 12 

12 36.0 17th Street  Georgia Avenue Delaware Avenue Sidewalk: 0.3 miles  $74,268 13 

12 36.0 Boston Avenue 25th Street 13th Street Sidewalk: 0.8 miles  $123,200 13 

14 35.0 Abingdon Avenue Import Drive  Savona Boulevard Sidewalk: 0.9 miles 
Under design by City 
of Port St. Lucie 

$575,0008 15 

14 35.0 Brescia Street Savage Boulevard Gatlin Boulevard Sidewalk: 1.3 miles  $323,0008 15 

16 33.5 Weatherbee Road U.S. Highway 1 Oleander Avenue Sidewalk: 0.5 miles  $445,220  17 

17 32.0 Range Line Road Glades Cut Off Road Martin County Line Sidewalk: 6.1 miles  $5,300,0006 18 

17 32.0 West Midway Road 
West of Glades Cut Off 
Road 

Shinn Road Area Sidewalk: 5.0 miles  $5,753,5806 18 

19 31.5 St. Lucie Boulevard Kings Highway North 25th Street Sidewalk: 3.0 miles  $2,600,0006 20 

20 30.5 Sunrise Boulevard Edwards Road Midway Road Sidewalk: 2.8 miles  $2,250,0006 21 

21 29.5 Bell Avenue Oleander Avenue Sunrise Boulevard Sidewalk: 0.5 miles  $411,8369 22 

18

BuchwaldP
Highlight



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



 

Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 

 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, Florida  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 

 
Board/Committee: St. Lucie TPO Board 

 
Meeting Date: April 3, 2024 

 
Item Number: 8b 

 
Item Title:  FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 Draft Unified Planning 

Work Program (UPWP) and Proposed Budget 
 

Item Origination: Federal and State requirements and FY 2022/23– 

FY 2023/24 UPWP 
 

UPWP Reference: Task 1.2 –  UPWP Development 
 

Requested Action: Adopt the FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 draft UPWP 
and proposed budget, adopt with conditions, or 

do not adopt. 
 

Staff Recommendation: Based on the comments from the Call for UPWP 
Projects being incorporated into the draft UPWP, 

the recommendations of the TPO Advisory 
Committees, and that the proposed budget 

fiscally supports the draft UPWP, it is 
recommended that the FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

draft UPWP and proposed budget be adopted. 

 
 

Attachments 
· Staff Report 

· FY 2024/25 - FY 2025/26 Draft UPWP 
· FY 2024/25 - FY 2025/26 Proposed Budget, Historical Budgets, and Actual 

Expenses 
 

37



Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 

 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, Florida  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

TO: St. Lucie TPO Board 

 
FROM: Peter Buchwald 

 Executive Director 
 

 Marceia Lathou 
 Transit/ACES Program Manager 

 
DATE: March 26, 2024 

 
SUBJECT: FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 Draft Unified Planning 

Work Program (UPWP) and Proposed Budget 

 

 

BACKGROUND 

 
The Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) is the two-year program of 

transportation planning activities supported by State and Federal funds 
undertaken by the TPO. The UPWP includes a description of the planning work 

and resulting products, who will perform the work, timeframes for completion, 
costs, and funding sources. The UPWP serves as the foundational document 

for carrying out the continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive 
transportation planning process within the TPO area.  

 
The UPWP is required for the TPO to receive funding from the Federal Highway 

Administration (FHWA), the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), the Florida 
Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged (FCTD), and the Florida 

Department of Transportation (FDOT).  
 

Planning projects are included in the UPWP based on TPO priorities, the need 

to satisfy State/Federal requirements, and funding constraints. Projects may 
involve any aspect of surface and air transportation, including roadways, 

transit, bicycle/pedestrian, advanced air mobility (AAM) and the needs of the 
transportation disadvantaged.   

 
The current UPWP for FY 2022/23 – FY 2023/24 ends on June 30, 2024. 

Therefore, the draft UPWP for FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 has been developed 
for review and adoption. 

38



March 26, 2024 Page 2 of 4 

 

 

ANALYSIS 
 

A Call for UPWP Projects was initiated in the fall of 2023 which included an 
initial discussion of the FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 draft UPWP with the 

TPO Advisory Committees at their November meetings and with the TPO Board 
at its December meeting. The discussion consisted of the identification and 

discussion of the planning priorities, tasks, projects, and activities that should 
comprise the draft UPWP. The Call for UPWP Projects also was announced to 

the public through social media, discussions at meetings such as the Local 
Coordinating Board for the Transportation Disadvantaged (LCB), and at public 

outreach events. 
 

The Call for UPWP Projects resulted in project ideas which are included in the 
FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 draft UPWP. In addition to the recurring projects 

and efforts in the UPWP such as performance target setting and measurement, 

annual development of the List of Priority Projects and the Transportation 
Improvement Program, annual collection of the traffic counts for the TPO area, 

and Regional and Intergovernmental Planning Coordination, the following 
projects in the UPWP are proposed: 

 
· Public Participation Plan (PPP) Major Update: A major update to 

the TPO’s PPP which includes reviews of the goals, objectives, 
strategies, and performance measures regarding public participation in 

the TPO decision-making process. This update also will identify new 
opportunities to enhance the public’s role in transportation 

decision-making, visualize the PPP performance measures, and assist 
in the implementation of the TPO’s Title VI Program.  

 
· 2050 Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) Update: An update 

to the TPO's LRTP to the horizon year of 2050. The 2050 LRTP Update 

will reimagine mobility and describe how the multimodal transportation 
system of the TPO area will evolve over the next 25 years and meet 

the TPO's transportation goals while prioritizing transportation projects 
for Federal and State funding.  

 
· Mobility Data: As part of the 2050 LRTP Update, exploration and 

procurement of new sources of mobility data from mobile devices such 
as travel speeds, times, and reliability and vehicle volumes. The data 

also will assist in implementing the recommendations of the TPO’s 
Sustainable Transportation Plan, Electric Vehicle Charging Station Plan, 

Transportation Connectivity Study, etc. 
 

· Vehicle Sharing Study: Analysis of the available methods to provide 
residents and visitors with short-term access to automobiles. Vehicle 

sharing, a potential first-last mile option at mobility hubs, would 

39



March 26, 2024 Page 3 of 4 

 

 

support recommendations in the TPO’s Sustainable Transportation 
Plan. A recent Cornell University study revealed a reduction of 15 

personal vehicles for every sharing vehicle. Therefore, vehicle sharing 
also could support recommendations in the TPO’s Carbon Reduction 

Strategy and Congestion Management Process (CMP). 
 

· Autonomous Vehicle (AV) Study Update: A status report on the 
latest self-driving vehicle trends. Because the nationwide focus has 

shifted to robo-taxis and autonomous freight movement, this report will 
support recommendations in the TPO’s Sustainable Transportation 

Plan, Advanced Air Mobility Study Phase 2, CMP, etc. 
 

· Electric Bicycle Study: As electric bicycles become more affordable 
and compete with pedestrians and traditional bicycles for limited public 

right-of-way space, potential conflicts will increase. This study will 

identify enhancements to the TPO’s Walk-Bike Network to make it safer 
for all users. 

 
· Oxbow Eco-Center Pedestrian Link: Feasibility study of a 

pedestrian link between the Oxbow Eco-Center and the County’s 
preserves on the eastern side of the St. Lucie River. 

 
· U.S. Highway 1 Corridor Congestion Study: As part of the 

2025 Traffic Count Program, an in-depth analysis of the traffic 
congestion and identification of strategies to reduce it on U.S. Highway 

1 from Prima Vista Boulevard to the Martin County line.  
 

· Update Graphics Display Panels: Development of safety graphics to 
replace the two display panels in the TPO Boardroom. 

 

The draft UPWP was submitted to FDOT, FHWA, and FTA for their review and 
comment, and the public comment period was initiated. The Advisory 

Committees, at their meetings during the week of March 18th, recommended 
adoption of the draft UPWP with the Technical Advisory Committee further 

recommending that the northern limit for the U.S. Highway 1 Corridor 
Congestion Study be extended from Crosstown Parkway to Prima Vista 

Boulevard which was incorporated into the draft UPWP.  
 

The attached FY 2024/25 - FY 2025/26 Proposed Budget was prepared to 
fiscally support the draft UPWP. The attachment also includes the budgeted 

and actual expenses for the past two fiscal years of the current UPWP for 
reference. Significant changes in the proposed budget from the current budget 

are summarized as follows: 
 

40



March 26, 2024 Page 4 of 4 

 

 

Staff Salaries: These expenses are increased to include the recent filling of 
the Bicycle-Pedestrian Program Manager position and overall salary increases 

averaging three percent each fiscal year.  
 

Staff Benefits These expenses are increased for overall benefit cost increases 
in each of the fiscal years. 

 
Professional Services/Consultants: These expenses include retaining 

contracted professional services or consultants for the preparation of meeting 
summaries, website and social media management, public engagement 

support, traffic data collection including the U.S. Highway 1 Corridor 
Congestion Study, graphics display panels update, Interactive Transportation 

Improvement Program preparation, development of the 2050 LRTP Update 
with Mobility Data, and completion of the PPP Major Update, Vehicle Sharing 

Study, and Oxbow Eco-Center Pedestrian Link Feasibility Study.  

 
Training/Seminars: These expenses are decreased because a one-day Local 

MPOAC Institute Workshop to be conducted at the St. Lucie TPO is not 
programmed in the draft UPWP due to the discontinuation by the Florida 

Department of Transportation of the University of South Florida Center for 
Urban Transportation Research as the workshop facilitator.  

 
The revenues projected for both fiscal years of the UPWP are detailed in 

Tables 2 and 3 in the UPWP. The budgeted expenses for both fiscal years are 
equal to the projected revenues for those fiscal years.  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

Based on the comments from the Call for UPWP Projects being incorporated 

into the draft UPWP, the recommendations of the TPO Advisory Committees, 
and that the proposed budget fiscally supports the draft UPWP, it is 

recommended that the FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 draft UPWP and proposed 
budget be adopted. 

 

41



 

Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 

 

Coco Vista Centre 

466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 
Port St. Lucie, Florida  34953 

772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 

 

Unified Planning Work Program 
(UPWP) 

Performance-Based Planning and Programming 
 
 

FY 2024/25– FY 2025/26 
(July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2026) 

 
 

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Numbers: 

20.205 - Highway Planning and Construction  

20.505 - Federal Transit Technical Studies Grant (Metropolitan Planning) 

 

Funding for this Planning Work Program Provided By: 

Federal Highway Administration 

Federal Transit Administration 

Florida Department of Transportation 

Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged 

 

Federal Aid Project Number: 0311-060-M 

Financial Project Numbers: 439326-5-14-01 & 439326-5-14-02 

FAC Number: Z450 

 

 

Adopted on April 3, 2024 

 

______________________________ 

Chris Dzadovsky, Chairman 

 

 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT: The preparation of the UPWP has been funded in part through grants from the 
Federal Highway Administration and Federal Transit Administration of the U.S. Department of 
Transportation (USDOT), under the Metropolitan Planning Program of the U.S. Code (Title 23, 
Section 104f). The contents of this report do not necessarily reflect the official views or policy of the 
USDOT. 
 

TITLE VI STATEMENT: The St. Lucie TPO satisfies the requirements of various nondiscrimination 
laws and regulations including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Public participation is welcome 
without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability, income, or family status. 
Persons wishing to express their concerns about nondiscrimination should contact Marceia Lathou, 
the Title VI/ADA Coordinator of the St. Lucie TPO, at 772-462-1593 or via email at 
lathoum@stlucieco.org. 

 
Kreyol Ayisyen: Si ou ta renmen resevwa enfòmasyon sa a nan lang Kreyòl Aysiyen, tanpri rele 
nimewo 772-462-1593. 
 
Español: Si usted desea recibir esta informaciòn en español, por favor llame al 772-462-1593. 

42



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

SECTION PAGE 

 

I. INTRODUCTION........................................................................................ 1 

II. ORGANIZATION AND MANAGEMENT ......................................................... 7 

III. WORK PROGRAM ELEMENTS AND TASKS ................................................ 12 

ELEMENT 1: PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION .......................................... 13 

Task 1.1 Program Management ......................................................... 14 

Task 1.2 UPWP Development ............................................................ 17 

ELEMENT 2: MODELING, GIS, DATA MANAGEMENT, AND PERFORMANCE 

MEASUREMENT ................................................................ 19 

Task 2.1 Travel Demand Modeling ..................................................... 20 

Task 2.2 GIS and Data Management .................................................. 22 

Task 2.3 Traffic Count Program Management ...................................... 24 

Task 2.4 Performance Measurement and Target Setting ....................... 26 

ELEMENT 3: RECURRING AND SYSTEMS AND PROJECT PLANNING ...... 28 

Task 3.1 Long Range Transportation Planning ..................................... 29 

Task 3.2 Transit Planning ................................................................. 31 

Task 3.3 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) .......................... 33 

Task 3.4 Congestion Management Process (CMP) ................................ 35 

Task 3.5 Bicycle-Pedestrian/Complete Streets Planning ........................ 37 

Task 3.6 Freight Planning ................................................................. 39 

Task 3.7 Safety and Security Planning ............................................... 41 

Task 3.8 Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) Program ......................... 43 

Task 3.9 Environmental Planning....................................................... 45 

Task 3.10 Automated/Connected/Electric/Shared-Use (ACES) ............... 47 

Vehicles Planning ............................................................................ 47 

ELEMENT 4: REGIONAL AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL PLANNING AND 

COORDINATION ............................................................... 49 

Task 4.1 Models of Regional Planning Cooperation ............................... 50 

Task 4.2 Intergovernmental Planning and Coordination ........................ 52 

ELEMENT 5: PUBLIC PARTICIPATION, EDUCATION & OUTREACH ........ 54 

Task 5.1 Public Participation, Education & Outreach ............................. 55 

IV. SUMMARY BUDGET TABLES .................................................................... 57 

TABLE 1 Work Task Summary ................................................... 58 

TABLE 2 Revenues (FY 2024/25) .............................................. 60 

TABLE 3 Revenues (FY 2025/26) .............................................. 61 

TABLE 4 Agency Participation (FY 2024/25) ............................. 62 

TABLE 5 Agency Participation (FY 2025/26 .............................. 63 

TABLE 6 Funding Sources (FY 2024/25) ................................... 64 

TABLE 7 Funding Sources (FY 2025/26) ................................... 65 

 

APPENDICES 

 

APPENDIX A – ACRONYM LIST  

APPENDIX B – EXAMPLE PUBLIC COMMENT NOTICE  

APPENDIX C – SUMMARY OF PUBLIC COMMENTS 

APPENDIX D – USDOT PLANNING EMPHASIS AREAS, FDOT STATEWIDE PLANNING 

EMPHASIS AREAS AND FDOT DISTRICT 4 PLANNING ACTIVITIES 

APPENDIX E – STATEMENTS AND ASSURANCES  

  

43



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

1 

I. INTRODUCTION 
 

Definition of the Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) 

 

In accordance with Federal Regulations 23 CFR 450 and Florida Statute 339.175(9), the 

UPWP for the St. Lucie Transportation Planning Organization (TPO) identifies the 

transportation planning budget, the priorities to be carried out, and the activities to be 

undertaken in the Metropolitan Planning Area (MPA) in fiscal years 2024/25 and 2025/26. 

The UPWP is developed based upon State and Federal regulations, Chapter 3 of the Florida 

Department of Transportation (FDOT) Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) Program 

Management Handbook, local needs, public input, and those activities required to ensure 

that a continuing, cooperative and comprehensive (3-C) approach to transportation 

planning is conducted.  

 

The document is required for the TPO to receive Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), 

Federal Transit Administration (FTA), Florida Commission for the Transportation 

Disadvantaged (FCTD), and FDOT funds. At a minimum, the UPWP is required to include 

a description of the planning work and resulting products, the entities that will perform 

the work, time frames for completing the work, the cost of the work, and the sources of 

funds to support the work.   

 

An Acronym List is provided in Appendix A. 

 

Prior Efforts 

 

A sampling of the activities conducted, the efforts performed, and the end products 

accomplished by the St. Lucie TPO during FY 2022/23 – FY 2023/24 includes the following: 

 

Program Management 

Legislative Priorities for 2023 and 2024 

2023 and 2024 Annual Joint Certification Reviews 

 

Travel Demand Modeling 

TCRPM 2045 TAZ and Model Updates 

TCRPM6 Development and Support 

 

GIS and Data Management 

Community Profile Updates 

 

Traffic Count Management Program 

Traffic Counts and Level of Service Reports for 2023 and 2024 

 

Performance Measurement and Target Setting 

Performance Targets Setting for 2023 and 2024 

 

Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) 

SmartMoves 2045 LRTP amendments and implementation 

SmartMoves 2045 LRTP Performance Reports for 2023 and 2024 

Airport Connector Corridor Alignment Study 

 

Transit (Bus and Rail Operations) Planning 

Fort Pierce Passenger Rail Station Planning 

Transit Development Plan Major Update 

Technical Assistance to Transit Agencies 

44



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

2 

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 

Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) Administration 

Interactive TIP for FY 2023/24 – FY 2027/28 TIP 

List of Priority Projects (LOPP) for 2022/23 and 2023/24 

FDOT Work Program Review for FY 2023/24 – FY 2027/28 and FY 2024/25 – FY 2028/29 

Annual Publications of Obligated Federal Projects 

 

Congestion Management Process (CMP) 

2022 and 2023 CMP Annual Reports 

CMP Major Update 

Special Events Congestion Management and Parking Plan (SECMAPP) 

 

Bicycle-Pedestrian/Complete Streets Planning 

St. Lucie Walk-Bike Network Update  

East Coast Greenway/Florida SUN Trail Implementation 

SUN Trail Network Port of Fort Pierce Overpass Connector Feasibility Study 

 

Safety and Security Planning 

Spot Speed Studies 

Midway Road Safety Study 

Security and Safety Issue Identification 

Treasure Coast Community Traffic Safety Team Support 

Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP) Activation and Management 

 

Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) Program 

Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan (TDSP) 

TDSP Annual Update 

Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) Redesignation and Evaluation 

Local Coordinating Board for the Transportation Disadvantaged (LCB) Support 

 

Freight Planning 

St. Lucie Freight Network Update 

Advanced Air Mobility Study Phase II 

 

Environmental Planning 

Carbon Reduction Strategy 

Transportation Asset/Service Vulnerability Assessment Update 

 

Automated/Connected/Electric/Shared-Use (ACES) Vehicles Planning 

Electric Vehicle Charging Station Plan Update 

Sustainable Transportation Plan 

 

Regional Planning and Coordination 

2045 Treasure Coast RLRTP 

Treasure Coast Transportation Council Support 

Transportation Regional Incentive Program (TRIP) Administration 

 

Intergovernmental Planning and Coordination 

Treasure Coast Scenic Highway Committee Support (TCSHC) 

 

Public Involvement, Education & Outreach 

Title VI Plan Major Update  

Regional Bus Survey 

Annual Evaluations and Updates of the Public Participation Plan 

45



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

3 

Additional activities conducted during FY 2022/23 – FY 2023/24 are summarized within 

the individual works tasks in Section III of the FY 2022/23 – FY 2023/24 UPWP. 

 

Carryover Activities 

 

No activities were carried over from the FY 2022/23 – FY 2023/24 UPWP. 

 

Planning Priorities  

 

The planning priorities to be addressed in FY 2024/25 and FY 2025/26 include: 

 

· Project Advancement: Support the local agencies in advancing the 

implementation of projects in the 2050 LRTP, 2050 RLRTP, and TIP 

· Previous Planning Efforts: Build upon and/or implement the results of previous 

UPWP planning efforts 

· Safety and Security: Provide for the consideration and implementation of 

projects, strategies, and services that increase the safety and security of the 

transportation system 

· Performance-Based Multimodal Planning and Programming: Continue to 

perform performance-based multimodal planning which increases mobility options 

and ensures the most efficient investment of federal transportation funds by linking 

investment priorities to the achievement of adopted targets 

· Alternative Transportation Facilities: Support the development and 

implementation of alternative transportation facilities including sidewalks, bike 

paths/lanes, and transit, port, airport and ACES infrastructure 

· Regional Efforts: Build upon previous efforts and identify new opportunities for 

regional coordination and collaboration 

· Public Involvement and Education: Continue to enhance public involvement 

and education 

· Livability and Sustainability: Enhance the livability and sustainability of the local 

communities  

· Transportation Demand Management: Support efficient travel behaviors 

 

Through the tasks and activities represented in this UPWP, the TPO will continue to apply 

its priorities in a 3-C manner to assist in addressing local needs. 

 

Consolidated Planning Grant (CPG) 

 

FDOT and the TPO participate in the CPG which enables FDOT, in cooperation with the 

TPO, FHWA, and FTA, to annually consolidate Florida’s FHWA PL and FTA 5305(d) 

metropolitan planning fund allocations into a single grant that is administered by the FHWA 

Florida Division. These funds are annually apportioned to FDOT as the direct recipient and 

suballocated to the TPO by FDOT utilizing formulas approved by the Florida MPOs, FDOT, 

FHWA, and FTA in accordance with 23 CFR 420.109 and 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53  

 

State Match for PL (CPG) and SU/Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) 

Funds  

 

FDOT provides a percentage (18.07 percent) matching share for PL (CPG) and SU (STBG) 

funds utilized by the TPO. As permitted by 23 CFR 120(j) and FTA C 8100.1D. the match 

involves the use of Florida toll revenue credits, also known as Transportation Development 

Credits, as a “soft-match”, also known as a non-cash match, toward the non-federal 

matching share of PL (CPG) and SU (STBG) funds.  

 

46



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

4 

Section 120 of Title 23, U.S.C., permits a state to use certain toll revenue expenditures 

as a credit toward the non-federal matching share of all programs authorized by Title 23, 

(with the exception of Emergency Relief Programs) and for transit programs authorized 

by Chapter 53 of Title 49, U.S.C. This is in essence a "soft-match" provision that allows 

the federal share to be increased up to 100% to the extent credits are available. 

 

The “soft match” amounts being utilized to match the PL (CPG) and SU (STBG) funding in 

the UPWP are calculated by dividing the Federal PL (CPG) and SU (STBG) participation 

(also known as the total UPWP expenses) for each fiscal year by 4.534 and are identified 

as follows:  

 

 Year PL (CPG) Match SU (STBG) Match 

 FY 2024/25 $204,714 $88,222 

 FY 2025/26 $216,053 $88,222 

 

Agency Involvement in the Development of the UPWP 

 

The UPWP is developed in cooperation with the member agencies of the TPO (Fort Pierce, 

Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie County, St. Lucie Public Schools, and a transit representative 

(St. Lucie Village is represented by St. Lucie County). In addition, the UPWP is developed 

in consultation with FHWA, FTA, FDOT, FCTD, the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), 

and federal land management agencies. The UPWP is approved by the TPO Board and the 

appropriate State and Federal agencies. In addition, the St. Lucie TPO coordinates the 

UPWP with the Martin and Indian River MPOs. 

 

Public Involvement in the Development of the UPWP 

 

The TPO uses the principles of environmental justice in the preparation of the UPWP and 

is responsive to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as well as other Federal 

requirements including the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act, commonly known as 

the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL). The draft UPWP is made readily available for public 

review through the TPO website, the TAC, CAC, BPAC, and LCB, an open public comment 

period, social media, and other means. An Example Public Comment Notice is provided in 

Appendix B. 

 

The TAC, CAC, BPAC, and LCB responded to a Call for UPWP projects at their respective 

meetings in November 2023. The TAC, CAC and BPAC reviewed the draft UPWP at their 

meetings in March 2024. Recommendations regarding UPWP projects, activities, and 

priorities from the TAC, CAC, BPAC, and LCB and the general public are provided to the 

TPO Board. The broad range of input is reflected in the UPWP and other planning 

documents to be developed through the UPWP. A summary of the comments received and 

their incorporation into the UPWP is provided in Appendix C. 

 

In addition, TPO staff coordinate with local government media specialists to continue 

taping and airing TPO meetings, where the UPWP is discussed and considered, on local 

government and public access television channels. TPO meeting broadcasts are available 

for viewing via a link from the TPO website and are closed-captioned for the hearing 

impaired.  

 

Consistency with Other Plans 

 

The UPWP is developed to be consistent with all applicable plans, including the growth 

management plans of the local governments within the MPA. The UPWP work products 

and tasks are designed to assist local governments by providing resources, such as data 

47



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

5 

and maps, that can be utilized in the comprehensive planning process. The TPO staff will 

contribute to and support local and state government planning efforts through the 

individual work tasks included in the UPWP. In addition, coordination and support will be 

continued through the TAC, CAC, BPAC, and LCB. 

 

Planning Factors and Task Matrix 

 

Federal regulations  require that the metropolitan transportation planning process shall be 

continuous, cooperative, and comprehensive, and provide for consideration and 

implementation of projects, strategies, and services that will address the following factors 

identified in 23 CFR 450.306(b):  

 
1. Support the economic vitality of the metropolitan area, especially by enabling global 

competitiveness, productivity, and efficiency; 
2. Increase the safety of the transportation system for motorized and non-motorized users; 
3. Increase the security of the transportation system for motorized and non-motorized users; 
4. Increase accessibility and mobility of people and freight; 
5. Protect and enhance the environment, promote energy conservation, improve the quality 

of life, and promote consistency between transportation improvements and State and local 
planned growth and economic development patterns; 

6. Enhance the integration and connectivity of the transportation system, across and between 
modes, for people and freight; 

7. Promote efficient system management and operation; 
8. Emphasize the preservation of the existing transportation system; 

9. Improve the resiliency and reliability of the transportation system and reduce or mitigate 
stormwater impacts of surface transportation; and 

10. Enhance travel and tourism. 

 

The inclusion of the Federal planning factors in the UPWP and in the metropolitan planning 

process is demonstrated using the following matrix with an “x” in the box denoting that 

the UPWP task addresses the planning factor: 

 

Work Element Tasks 
Federal Planning Factors 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

1.1  Program Management X X X X X X X X X X 

1.2  UPWP Development X X X X X X X X X X 

2.1  Travel Demand Modeling  X X X X  X  X  

2.2  GIS and Data Management  X X X X  X  X  

2.3  Traffic Count Program Management X X  X X  X  X  

2.4  Performance Measurement and Target Setting X X X X X X X X X X 

3.1  Long Range Transportation Planning X X X X X X X X X X 

3.2  Transit Planning X X X X X X X X X X 

3.3  Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) X X X X X X X X X X 

3.4  Congestion Management Process (CMP) X X X X X  X X X X 

3.5  Bicycle-Pedestrian/Complete Streets Planning X X  X X X X X X X 

3.6  Freight Planning X X X X X X X X X  

3.7  Safety and Security Planning  X X      X X 

3.8  Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) Program  X X  X X X X  X X 

3.9  Environmental Planning X X X X X X X X X X 

3.10 Automated/Connected/Electric/Shared-Use 
(ACES) Vehicles Planning 

X X X X X X X X X X 

48



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

6 

 

USDOT Planning Emphasis Areas, FDOT Statewide Planning Emphasis Areas, 

and FDOT District 4 Planning Activities 

 

In addition to incorporating the previously-summarized Federal Planning Factors, the 

TPO’s UPWP incorporates the USDOT Planning Emphasis Areas. These areas have included 

Tackling the Climate Crisis – Transition to a Clean Energy, Resilient Future, Equity and 

Justice40 in Transportation Planning, Complete Streets, Public Involvement, Strategic 

Highway Network (STRAHNET)/U.S. Department of Defense (DOD) Coordination, Federal 

Land Management Agency (FLMA) Coordination, Planning and Environment Linkages 

(PEL), and Data in Transportation Planning. While several UPWP tasks advance these 

emphasis areas, UPWP Tasks 2.2, 3.5, 3.9, 4.2, and 5.1 are dedicated to Data, Complete 

Streets, Environmental, Intergovernmental Coordination, and Public Participation 

respectively.  

 

Past FDOT Statewide Planning Emphasis Areas have also been incorporated into the TPO’s 

UPWP which include Safety, Equity, Resilience, and Emerging Mobility. While several UPWP 

tasks advance these emphasis areas, UPWP Tasks 3.7, 5.1, 3.9, and 3.10 are dedicated 

to Safety, Public Participation, Environmental, and ACES Vehicles Planning, respectively.  

 

Similarly, the FDOT District 4 Planning Activities, if any, are incorporated into the TPO’s 

UPWP as appropriate and include the goals of the Florida Transportation Plan (FTP), the 

USDOT Planning Emphasis Areas, and the FDOT Secretary’s list of the “vital few” agency 

emphasis areas, which are subject to change based on the FDOT Secretary.  

 

The USDOT Planning Emphasis Areas, FDOT Statewide Planning Emphasis Areas, and 

FDOT District 4 Planning Activities are detailed in Appendix D. 

 

 

  

Work Element Tasks 
Federal Planning Factors 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

4.1  Models of Regional Planning Cooperation X X X X X X X X X X 

4.2  Intergovernmental Planning and Coordination X X X X X X X X X X 

5.1  Public Participation, Education & Outreach X X X X X X X X X X 

49



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

7 

II. ORGANIZATION AND MANAGEMENT 
 

The St. Lucie TPO is the primary agency responsible for transportation planning for the 

MPA depicted below and was established under the federal requirements of 23 USC 134 

for the utilization of federal transportation funds. The Board consists of ten (10) voting 

members representing the local governments within the MPA, one (1) voting member who 

represents the transit agency in the MPA, one (1) voting member who represents the 

St. Lucie Public Schools Board, and a non-voting advisor from FDOT. The voting 

membership of the Board is apportioned as follows:  

 

· Four (4) St. Lucie County Board of County Commissioners* 

· Four (4) City of Port St. Lucie Councilmembers 

· Two (2) City of Fort Pierce Commissioners 

· One (1) St. Lucie Public Schools Board member 

· One (1) transit representative 

 
*The District 5 St. Lucie County Commissioner also represents St. Lucie Village 

 

50



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

8 

Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 

 

The St. Lucie TPO has established a broad-based TAC composed of planners, engineers, 

and other appropriate professionals. The TAC was established for the purpose of advising 

and providing technical expertise to the St. Lucie TPO decision-making process for 

adopting and maintaining area-wide transportation plans, policies, and programs. The 

current TAC voting membership includes representation from municipal transportation, 

engineering, public safety, and land use agencies. In addition, the TAC includes 

representation from all modes of transportation and various levels of government and 

provides the opportunity for necessary staff coordination to achieve a unified 

transportation planning effort. The TAC consists of the following voting members: 

 

· St. Lucie County Planning and Development Services Department 

· Fort Pierce Planning Department 

· Port St. Lucie Planning Department 

· St. Lucie County Public Works Department 

· Fort Pierce Engineering Department 

· Port St. Lucie Public Works Department 

· Treasure Coast International Airport 

· St. Lucie Public Schools  

· Independent Public Transportation Operator     

· St. Lucie County Fire District  

· St. Lucie TPO Area Freight Representative 

· St. Lucie County Sheriff’s Office 

· St. Lucie County Transit Management 

 

In addition, the TAC includes a non-voting advisor who is a representative of the FDOT. 

 

Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) 

 

The St. Lucie TPO also has established a CAC designed to facilitate a broad range of citizen 

involvement in the transportation planning process. The purpose of the CAC is to seek 

citizen and community participation in the St. Lucie TPO decision-making process for 

adopting and maintaining area-wide transportation plans, policies, and programs; provide 

comment with respect to the concerns of various segments of the population; and 

recommend projects and funding allocations for consideration by the TPO Board. The CAC 

plays a significant role in implementing public involvement activities in the planning 

process. The St. Lucie TPO’s CAC consists of the following voting members: 

 

· Two (2) City of Fort Pierce Residents 

· Two (2) City of Port St. Lucie Residents 

· Two (2) Unincorporated St. Lucie County Residents 

· Two (2) Minority Residents of St. Lucie County 

· Two (2) At-Large Residents of St. Lucie County 

· One (1) Disabled Resident of St. Lucie County 

 

Bicycle-Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC) 

 

The St. Lucie TPO has established a BPAC to provide recommendations regarding the 

bicycle and pedestrian planning and programming activities for the St. Lucie TPO and to 

work with local and State government agencies to coordinate bicycle and pedestrian 

planning and programming activities. The St. Lucie TPO’s BPAC consists of the following 

voting members: 

 

51



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

9 

· St. Lucie County Parks and Recreation Department 

· City of Port St. Lucie Parks and Recreation Department 

· City of Fort Pierce Public Works Department 

· St. Lucie County Environmental Resources Department 

· One (1) Resident of St. Lucie County Experiencing or Representing a Disability 

· Two (2) Resident Bicycling Representatives 

· Two (2) Resident Running/Hiking Representatives 

 

In addition, the BPAC includes a non-voting advisor who is a representative of the FDOT. 

 

Treasure Coast Scenic Highway Committee (TCSHC) 

 

The Treasure Coast Scenic Highway Committee (TCSHC) was established in 2004. The 

function of the TCSHC is to explore available opportunities for enhancing the Treasure 

Coast corridor of the Florida Scenic Highway. The 12 members of the TCSHC include citizen 

representatives as well as representatives from the local jurisdictions, State and local 

agencies.  

 

Local Coordinating Board for the Transportation Disadvantaged (LCB) 

 

The Local Coordinating Board for the Transportation Disadvantaged (LCB) is appointed by 

the TPO, pursuant to Chapter 427, F.S., and Rule 41-2, F.A.C. The purpose of the LCB is 

to implement the duties described in Rule 41-2 as a part of the Florida Transportation 

Disadvantaged (TD) program which provides transportation assistance to economically 

and physically disadvantaged citizens. The TD program is incorporated into Task 3.8 of 

the UPWP. The LCB consists of 19 representatives from various State and local agencies 

as well as citizen representatives. A member of the TPO Board is appointed annually to 

serve as the LCB Chair. 

 

 

Treasure Coast Transportation Council (TCTC) 

 

In 2006, the Treasure Coast Transportation Council (TCTC), consisting of two members 

each from the TPO, Indian River MPO, and Martin MPO, was created though an Interlocal 

Agreement. The Interlocal Agreement identifies the parties’ “desire to create a formal 

mechanism to coordinate regional transportation planning activities” and “desire to 

participate cooperatively in identifying and selecting regional projects and programs for 

funding available for regional facilities including those funds that may be available through 

the State of Florida Transportation Regional Incentive Program (TRIP). A Treasure Coast 

Technical Advisory Committee (TCTAC) consisting of representatives from the TACs and 

transit representatives of the Martin MPO, St. Lucie TPO, and Indian River MPO was formed 

to provide technical and advisory support for the TCTC.  

 

Metropolitan Planning Organization Advisory Council (MPOAC) 

 

The St. Lucie TPO participates with the other Florida TPOs/MPOs in the statewide 

Metropolitan Planning Organization Advisory Council (MPOAC) which was established by 

state statute to allow TPOs/MPOs to advise on statewide plans and policies affecting 

TPOs/MPOs. The MPOAC is responsible for providing input and recommendations to FDOT 

on transportation plans, programs, policies, and issues. In addition, the MPOAC also serves 

as a forum for the discussion and formulation of recommendations to other appropriate 

bodies on statewide transportation-related issues. 

 

 

52



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

10 

TPO Staff 

 

St. Lucie TPO staff is the designated professional staff of the St. Lucie TPO and performs 

the work effort required to support the administration and management of a continuing, 

cooperative, and comprehensive transportation planning process that results in the 

development of plans and programs which comply with Federal and State requirements. 

The TPO is an autonomous legal entity. Federal assistance and coordination are provided 

primarily through FHWA and FTA. State assistance and coordination are provided through 

FDOT District 4 and the Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged.    

 

Agreements 

 

The TPO has executed the following agreements with State agencies and local 

governments to administer and facilitate the transportation planning process:   

 

Interlocal Agreement for Creation of the Metropolitan Planning Organization 

This agreement among FDOT and member agencies was executed to establish the St. 

Lucie TPO to implement and ensure a continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive 

metropolitan transportation planning process throughout the MPA and to assure 

eligibility for the receipt of federal transportation funds.   

 

Interlocal Agreement for Administrative Support Services 

This agreement between the TPO and St. Lucie County was executed for the provision 

by St. Lucie County of administrative support services to assist the TPO staff in 

managing the continuing, cooperative and comprehensive metropolitan transportation 

planning process. 

 

MPO Agreement 

This agreement between FDOT and the TPO is for the administration of all FHWA/FTA 

program funds of the UPWP and identifies the responsibilities for cooperatively carrying 

out transportation planning and programming pursuant to Federal regulations and the 

terms and conditions upon which the funding will be provided.  

 

Intergovernmental Coordination and Review and Public Transportation Coordination 

Joint Participation Agreement 

This agreement among the TPO, St. Lucie County (public transit provider), FDOT, and 

the Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council (TCRPC) describes the means by which 

activities will be coordinated, specifies how transportation planning and programming 

will be part of the comprehensively planned development of the MPA, and identifies 

the mutual responsibilities of the parties in carrying out the metropolitan 

transportation planning process.  

 

Public Transportation Joint Participation Agreement 

This agreement between the FDOT and the TPO was executed to provide FTA 

Section 5305(d) funding to the TPO for the undertaking of technical studies and to 

implement specific tasks and activities of the UPWP as described in Tasks 1.1 and 3.2.   

 

Interlocal Agreement Creating the Treasure Coast Transportation Council  

This agreement among the St. Lucie TPO, Indian River MPO, and Martin MPO was 

executed to coordinate regional transportation planning activities and to participate 

cooperatively in identifying and selecting regional facilities for funding available 

through TRIP (Transportation Regional Incentive Program).  
 

 

53



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

11 

Operational Procedures & Bylaws 

 

The TPO operates under a set of adopted By-Laws, Rules, and Procedures. While St. Lucie 

County provides administrative support services such as legal, financial, purchasing, and 

other services to the TPO, the TPO is a separate legal entity and autonomous from 

St. Lucie County. The TPO operates under rules and procedures consistent with State and 

Federal rules and laws. The TPO operational procedures fully comply with the Public 

Records Laws and the Sunshine Laws of the State of Florida and the federal government. 

The TPO's official records are maintained in the TPO Offices located at 466 SW Port St. 

Lucie Blvd, Suite 111, Port St. Lucie, FL 34953. The TPO records are available for public 

inspection during normal business hours. 

 

Statements, Certifications and Assurances 

 

On an annual basis, the State and the TPO are required to certify to the FHWA and FTA 

that the planning process is addressing the major issues facing the MPA and that it is 

being conducted in accordance with the following applicable requirements: 

 

§ Title 23 USC Section 134 (Metropolitan Planning) 

§ Section 5305(d) of the Federal Transit Act 

§ Title 23 Section 450.334 of the Code of Federal Regulations (Certification) 

§ Sections 174 and 176 (c) & (d) of the Clean Air Act, 

§ Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Title VI assurance executed by the 

State, 

§ Provisions of BIL and corresponding federal regulations, and 

§ Current provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 and USDOT 

regulations. 

 

On a quadrennial basis, FHWA and FTA conduct federal certification reviews of TPOs 

designated for Census urbanized areas where the population exceeds 200,000. These 

areas are known as Transportation Management Areas (TMAs). Such reviews for the 

St. Lucie TPO and Martin MPO, both designated for the Port St. Lucie TMA, were last 

completed in September 2021 and ultimately resulted in Federal certification for the 

St. Lucie TPO with no Corrective Actions and five Noteworthy Practices being identified for 

the St. Lucie TPO.  

 

Appendix E contains the Statements and Assurances of the St. Lucie TPO including the 

Debarment and Suspension Certification, Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) 

Utilization Statement, Lobbying Certification, and the Title VI Nondiscrimination Policy 

Statement. 

54



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

12 

III. WORK PROGRAM ELEMENTS AND TASKS 
 

The work program is divided into the following major elements and specific work tasks are 

discussed in detail within each major element. 

 

ELEMENT 1: PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION 

 

ELEMENT 2: MODELING, GIS, DATA MANAGEMENT, MONITORING, AND 

PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT 

 

ELEMENT 3: RECURRING AND SYSTEMS PLANNING 

 

ELEMENT 4: REGIONAL AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL PLANNING AND COORDINATION 

 

ELEMENT 5: PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT, EDUCATION & OUTREACH 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

55



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

13 

ELEMENT 1: PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION 
 

Element 1 includes the work tasks necessary to manage the transportation planning 

process on a continuing, comprehensive, and cooperative basis including program 

management; office rent and operations; meeting facilitation and support; grants and 

contracts administration; quarterly reporting; certification and auditing; staff education, 

training, and travel; UPWP development and review; development of legislative priorities; 

and legal services.  Specific work tasks are listed below and described on the following 

pages. 

 

Task 1.1  Program Management 

 

Task 1.2  UPWP Development 

 

 

  

56



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

14 

Task 1.1 Program Management 

Purpose: 

To coordinate, administer, and manage a continuing, comprehensive, and cooperative 

transportation planning process for the MPA of the St. Lucie TPO. 

Previous Work Completed: 

The TPO staff provided technical and administrative support to and facilitated the 

meetings for the TPO Board and TAC. The staff coordinated, administered, and managed 

the planning activities to meet the requirements of TPO agreements and other rules and 

regulations to ensure a continuing, cooperative and comprehensive transportation 

planning process. The operations included personnel administration and the filling of any 

staff vacancies and continually reviewing staff organization in order to assure 

implementation of the UPWP. In addition, work files, computers, audio-visual equipment 

and other office equipment were maintained.  

 

The staff also prepared the various documents including quarterly progress reports and 

financial records needed to assure State and Federal transportation funding and 

maintained liaison with the appropriate agencies. TPO Agreements and By-Laws were 

updated as needed and legislative priorities were developed, using local funds, and 

adopted annually by the TPO Board.  Staff participated in the FHWA/MPO/FDOT 

Statewide Meetings and performed the Annual Joint Certification Process with FDOT.  TPO 

representatives attended meetings of the MPOAC, National Association of Reginal 

Councils (NARC), Association of MPOs (AMPO), and associated subcommittees.  

Workshops and training sessions were attended to facilitate the above activities and to 

support addressing the planning priorities in a variety of technical areas including 

scenario planning, freight planning, travel demand management, transportation data 

management and modeling, and community livability/sustainability. 

Major Activities (performed continuously by the St. Lucie TPO unless 

otherwise noted): 

· Provide technical assistance and support to the TPO Board, CAC, TAC, BPAC and 

TCSH including the preparation of meeting agendas, summaries, notices, etc. 

· Provide grants and contracts administration, update interlocal agreements as 

necessary, and maintain financial records 

· Conduct an annual financial audit as required by State and Federal regulations 

concurrently with St. Lucie County’s annual financial audit and included in the 

General and Administrative Charges 

· Prepare quarterly progress reports and invoices for the FDOT 

· Participate in the annual joint certification review process with the FDOT 

· Participate in the federal quadrennial certification review process with the FDOT 

and the FHWA which includes preparation, a site visit, and public outreach. 

· Conduct a local MPOAC Institute training workshop 

· Participate in FHWA/MPO/FDOT Statewide Conferences which may include travel 

· Attend meetings, which may include travel, of the MPOAC, NARC, AMPO, 

associated subcommittees, and other related or relevant organizations and 

agencies  

· Prepare, using local funds, legislative priorities annually for consideration by the 

TPO Board  

· Attend professional workshops and training programs, which may include travel, 

with regard to professional trade associations, geographic information systems, 

transportation planning, congestion management, public involvement, 

FDOT/FHWA requirements, freight planning, travel demand management and 

modeling, community livability/sustainability, and other relevant subjects  

· Maintain computer stations and work files and other office equipment 

· Manage payments of office rent and associated office expenses 

57



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

15 

End Product: Completion 

Date: 

Performed 

by: 

St. Lucie TPO 

2025 Legislative Priorities (uses local funds only) December 2024 

2025 Annual Joint Certification Review May 2025 

Quadrennial Federal Certification Review September 2025 

2026 Legislative Priorities (uses local funds only) October 2025 

2026 Annual Joint Certification Review May 2026 
 
 

Task 1.1 Program Management 

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2024/25 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)3 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other 

deductions 

$200,341 $0 $0 $2,000 $202,341 

Subtotal: $200,341 $0 $0 $2,000 $202,341 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

Contract/Consultant 

Services1 
$40,000 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 

Subtotal: $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 

C.  Travel: 

Travel Expenses $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000 

Subtotal: $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

Advertising $650 $0 $0 $0 $650 

Building Rental $106,895 $0 $0 $0 $106,895 

Books & Subscriptions $200 $0 $0 $0 $200 

Communications $900 $0 $0 $0 $900 

Equipment < $5000 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 

Equipment Rental $1,900 $0 $0 $0 $1,900 

General & Admin 

Charges2 
$58,500 $0 $0 $0 $58,500 

Office Supplies $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 

Operating Supplies $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000 

Postage & Freight $85 $0 $0 $0 $85 

Supplies-Computer $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 

Training & Seminars $2,200 $0 $0 $0 $2,200 

Utilities $4,500 $0 $0 $0 $4,500 

Subtotal: $186,830 $0 $0 $0 $186,830 

Total: $432,171 $0 $0 $2,000 $434,171 
1,2,3See the next page for an explanation of these expenses/grants.   

58



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

16 

Task 1.1 Program Management 

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2025/26 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)3 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other 

deductions 

$189,544 $0 $0 $2,000 $191,544 

Subtotal: $189,544 $0 $0 $2,000 $191,544 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

Contract/Consultant 

Services1 
$40,000 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 

Subtotal: $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 

C.  Travel and Seminar Registration: 

Travel Expenses $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000 

Subtotal: $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

Advertising $650 $0 $0 $0 $650 

Building Rental $110,102 $0 $0 $0 $110,102 

Books & Subscriptions $200 $0 $0 $0 $200 

Communications $900 $0 $0 $0 $900 

Equipment < $5000 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 

Equipment Rental $1,900 $0 $0 $0 $1,900 

General & Administrative 

Charges2 
$58,500 $0 $0 $0 $58,500 

Office Supplies $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 

Operating Supplies $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000 

Postage & Freight $85 $0 $0 $0 $85 

Supplies-Computer $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 

Training and Seminars $2,200 $0 $0 $0 $2,200 

Utilities $4,500 $0 $0 $0 $4,500 

Subtotal: $190,037 $0 $0 $0 $190,037 

Total: $424,581 $0 $0 $2,000 $426,581 

 
1Contract/Consultant Services include custodial, security, and meeting support/meeting 

summary preparation services.  

 
2General and Administrative Charges are the direct expenses charged by St. Lucie County for 

the provision of administrative support services which include procurement/purchasing, 

finance, human resources, information technology, insurance coverage, annual financial 

audits, and legal services.  

 
3Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

 

  

59



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

17 

 
Task 1.2 UPWP Development 

Purpose: 

To implement the FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 UPWP and develop the FY 2026/27 – 

FY  2027/28 UPWP consistent with Federal and State requirements. 

Previous Work Completed: 

Implementation of the FY 2022/2023 – FY 2023/2024 UPWP and all required budget 

revisions and amendments. Coordination with Martin and Indian River MPOs on the 

implementation and development of their respective UPWPs. 

Major Activities (performed continuously by the St. Lucie TPO unless otherwise 

noted): 

· Implement the FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 UPWP 

· Develop the  FY 2026/27 – FY  2027/28 UPWP 

· Process amendments to the adopted UPWP as necessary 

· Process budget revisions to the adopted UPWP as necessary 

Coordinate with neighboring MPOs 

End Product: Completion Date: 

Performed by: 

St. Lucie TPO 

FY 2026/27 – FY 2027/28 

UPWP Call for Projects 
December 2025 

Review by Advisory 

Committees & Board 
March/April 2026 

Transmittal to FDOT March 2026 

Public Comment Period March/April 2026 

Adoption by Board April 2026 

Transmittal to FHWA & FTA May 2026 

UPWP Amendments As needed 

 

 

  

60



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

18 

Task 1.2 UPWP Development 

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2024/25 

Budget Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe benefits, 

and other deductions 
$5,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000 

Subtotal: $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

Task 1.2 UPWP Development 

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2025/26 

Budget Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe benefits, 

and other deductions 
$25,000 $0 $0 $0 $25,000 

Subtotal: $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $25,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $25,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

 

  

61



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

19 

ELEMENT 2: MODELING, GIS, DATA MANAGEMENT, AND PERFORMANCE 

MEASUREMENT 
 

Element 2 includes the work tasks necessary to collect, monitor, and manage area travel 

characteristics and factors affecting travel such as socioeconomic and land use data, 

transportation system data, and other data concerns and issues. In addition, Element 2 

includes efforts to improve the quality of the data and the collection and monitoring 

processes, to enhance travel demand modeling, to manage the Traffic Count Program, 

and to incorporate performance measurement and target setting. Specific work tasks are 

listed below and described on the following pages. 

 

Task 2.1 Travel Demand Modeling 

 

Task 2.2 GIS and Data Management 

 

Task 2.3 Traffic Count Program Management 

 

Task 2.4 Performance Measurement and Target Setting 

  

62



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

20 

Task 2.1 Travel Demand Modeling 

Purpose: 

To ensure the highest quality of travel demand modeling used by the continuing, 

cooperative and comprehensive transportation planning processes upon which decision 

making is based. 

Previous Work: 

The Treasure Regional Planning Model (TCRPM) was employed for transportation 

planning by the TPO and Indian River and Martin MPOs.  

 

The TCRPM version 5 TAZ data was updated to reflect the rapid growth occurring in the 

TPO area.  

 

The TCRPM version 6 was developed and will be utilized to support several tasks 

including development of the 2050 LRTP and RLRTP. As part of the development of the 

TCRPM 6, TPO staff delineated the 2020 Census Traffic Analysis Zones (TAZs) and Traffic 

Analysis Districts (TADs) for the MPA.  

 

The TCRPM is based on the activity-based modeling approach, and the TPO regularly 

hosted the model development meetings for the TCRPM 6. In addition, TPO staff 

participated on the Statewide Modeling Task Force (MTF) and the Florida Standard 

Urban Transportation Model Structure (FSUTMS) Users Group.  

 

Staff also provided guidance on regional modeling projects.  

Major Activities (performed continuously by the St. Lucie TPO unless 

otherwise noted): 

· Coordinate operation of TCRPM with FDOT, Indian River and Martin MPOs 

· Participate in regional modeling activities that include model improvements; 

travel and other data collection, compilation and development; model 

estimation, calibration, validation and sensitivity tests; and associated model 

support services. 

· Utilize the TCRPM to support, when applicable, UPWP tasks such as regional and 

intergovernmental planning and coordination.  

· Participate in MTF and regional modeling activities 

End Product: Completion Date: 
Performed by: 

St. Lucie TPO 
2050 LRTP Update 

Modeling Activities 
February 2026 

 

 

  

63



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

21 

Task 2.1 Travel Demand Modeling  

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2024/25 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other deductions 
$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 

Subtotal: $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

Task 2.1 Travel Demand Modeling  

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2025/26 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other deductions 
$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 

Subtotal: $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

  

64



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

22 

Task 2.2 GIS and Data Management 

Purpose: 

To ensure the highest quality of data used by the continuing, cooperative, and 

comprehensive transportation planning processes to support decision-making. 

Previous Work: 

The TPO continued to coordinate activities related to land use and socioeconomic data 

collection and analysis and assisted in the maintenance of GIS layers. In addition, the 

TPO participated in the identification of demographic changes that impact traffic 

operations and projections and travel demand. These efforts continued to be 

coordinated with the Martin and Indian River MPOs. 

 

The Community Profiles were updated based on the Census 2020 Data and most current 

American Community Survey (ACS). 

 

The TPO continued to coordinate data collection and monitoring activities in support of 

Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) infrastructure, such as the St. Lucie Advanced 

Transportation Management System (ATMS) and related to land use and socioeconomic 

data collection and analysis. 

 

To ensure the accuracy and relevance of geo-spatial data used for impact analysis, 

mapping, and decision making, TPO staff continued to monitor Federal, State, and local 

GIS geo-spatial databases. 

Major Activities (performed continuously by the St. Lucie TPO unless 

otherwise noted): 

· GIS and data monitoring, updates, maintenance, and coordination 

· Collection and coordination of transit data and analysis   

· ITS/St. Lucie ATMS implementation 

· Procurement of data, such as travel speeds, times, and reliability and vehicle 

volumes, from mobile device sources 

End Product: Completion Date: 
Performed by: 

St. Lucie TPO Mobility Data from 2050 LRTP Update February 2026 

 

 

  

65



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

23 

Task 2.2 GIS and Data Management 

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2024/25 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other 

deductions 

$40,000 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 

Subtotal: $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

Task 2.2 GIS and Data Management 

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2025/26 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other 

deductions 

$30,000 $0 $0 $0 $30,000 

Subtotal: $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $30,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $30,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

  

66



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

24 

Task 2.3 Traffic Count Program Management 

Purpose:  

To collect, monitor, and manage the highest quality of current traffic data on the public 

roadway network within the MPA. 

Previous Work: 

The TPO continued to collect and manage the Traffic Count Program through the Traffic 

Count Data Management System (TCDMS) and acted as a clearinghouse for the 

collection and management of all traffic counts performed in the MPA by the cities, 

County, and FDOT. The 2023 and 2024 Traffic Counts were collected and uploaded into 

the TCDMS, and the resulting reports were published online. The reports were also 

provided to FDOT, local governments, private consulting firms, and the public upon 

request. 

 

The Level of Service Analysis System (LOSAS) was updated to reflect FDOT’s updated 

methodology of performing roadway level-of-service analyses based on posted speed 

limits rather than traffic signal density. 

Major Activities (performed continuously by the St. Lucie TPO unless 

otherwise noted): 

· Manage and fund the Traffic Count Program. At the present time, none of the local 

jurisdictions maintains a formal traffic count program and continuation of the 

Traffic Count Program is necessary to monitor the performance of road segments 

for transportation planning purposes.  

· Collect and manage the Traffic Counts Program through the TCDMS and act as a 

clearinghouse for the collection and management of all traffic counts performed in 

the MPA by the Cities, County, and FDOT. 

· Maintain the LOSAS to evaluate the congestion and operating condition of the 

roadway network and produce an Annual Level of Service Report.  

· Continue to manage and fund the Traffic Count Program until an agreement to 

share the cost between the TPO and the local governments is appropriate to fund 

the program in future years. Such an agreement would need to be approved by 

the elected boards of the local governments. 

· Manage consultant services for traffic counts, LOSAS and TCDMS. 

End Product: Completion Date: 

Performed by: 

St. Lucie TPO 

2025 Traffic Counts and 

LOS Report/US-1 Corridor 

Congestion (Consultant 

services summarized below) 

June 2025/April 2025 

2026 Traffic Count and 

LOS Report (Consultant 

services summarized below) 

 

June 2026 

 

 
2025 Traffic Counts Scope of Services 
· Collect traffic counts at locations in accordance with the TPO Traffic Counts Collection Methodology. 
· At each location, the machine count data will be collected for a period of 48 hours during a “typical” weekday 

(Tuesday, Wednesday, and Thursday). 
· Special care will be taken to ensure the counts are not performed during periods of non-typical vehicular 

patterns (i.e. when school is out, holidays, etc.).  
· Count locations may need to be adjusted/revised during the data collection process whcih will be 

documented for reference and future use. 
· The counts will be uploaded into the TCDMS web application will be processed, reviewed, and Q/Ced  
· A review of the TCDMS for completeness and a check of calculations will be performed. 
· A level-of-service report will be developed for posting on the TPO’s web site. 
· Additional traffic counts will be collected on U.S. 1 from Prima Vista Boulevard to the Martin County line and 

nearby parallel corridors for an in-depth analysis of the reported traffic congestion. 
· Strategies will be developed to reduce the traffic congestion on the segment of U.S. 1 based on the analysis 

for project development and programming. (continued on next page)  

67



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

25 

Task 2.3 Traffic Count Program Management  

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2024/25 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG) 

SU 

(STBG)1 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other 

deductions 

$0 $10,000 $0 $0 $10,000 

Subtotal: $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $10,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

2025 Traffic Count and LOS 

Report 
$0 $65,000 $0 $0 $65,000 

Subtotal: $0 $65,000 $0 $0 $65,000 

Total: $0 $75,000 $0 $0 $75,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

Task 2.3 Traffic Count Program Management  

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2025/26 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG) 

SU 

(STBG)1 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other 

deductions 

$0 $5,000 $0 $0 $5,000 

Subtotal: $0 $5,000 $0 $0 $5,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

2026 Traffic Count and LOS 

Report 
$0 $45,000 $0 $0 $45,000 

Subtotal: $0 $45,000 $0 $0 $45,000 

Total: $0 $50,000 $0 $0 $50,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 
2026 Traffic Counts Scope of Services 

· Collect traffic counts at locations in accordance with the TPO Traffic Counts Collection 

Methodology. 

· At each location, the machine count data will be collected for a period of 48 hours 

during a “typical” weekday (Tuesday, Wednesday, and Thursday). 

· Special care will be taken to ensure the counts are not performed during periods of 

non-typical vehicular patterns (i.e. when school is out, holidays, etc.).  

· Count locations may need to be adjusted/revised during the data collection process 

whcih will be documented for reference and future use. 

· The counts will be uploaded into the TCDMS web application will be processed, 

reviewed, and Q/Ced  

· A review of the TCDMS for completeness and a check of calculations will be performed. 

· A level-of-service report will be developed for posting on the TPO’s web site. 

  

68



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

26 

Task 2.4 Performance Measurement and Target Setting 

Purpose:  

To ensure the most efficient investment of Federal transportation funds by linking 

investment priorities to the achievement of adopted targets 

Previous Work: 

The TPO continued to incorporate performance management as a strategic approach 

that includes performance measurement and target setting to connect investment and 

policy decisions to help achieve performance goals. Performance measures are 

quantitative criteria used to evaluate progress. Performance measure targets are the 

benchmarks against which collected data is gauged.  

 

The TPO and the transit provider cooperatively established targets for the State of Good 

Repair, Transit Asset Management Plan, and Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan 

(PTASP) performance measures. FDOT established targets for the safety, bridge and 

pavement, and system performance measures, and the TPO chose to adopt the same 

targets as FDOT. The strategies and investments used to meet the targets were 

identified and reported by FDOT through its Highway Safety Improvement Program, and 

the TPO reported its targets to FDOT.  

 

All of the targets were incorporated into the Long Range Transportation Plan and the 

Transportation Improvement Program.  

Major Activities (performed continuously by the St. Lucie TPO unless 

otherwise noted): 

· Support FDOT targets or establish own performance measurement targets for 

targets for safety, system performance, bridge and pavement performance 

measures 

· Obtain local data or data from FDOT for performance measurement 

· Track progress toward meeting targets based on the data obtained and report to 

FDOT 

· Continue coordination among the TPO, St. Lucie County Transit Management, and 

FDOT on transit performance measures and adjusting transit targets as applicable. 

This includes demonstrating efforts to integrate progress towards achieving targets 

in the TIP and LRTP (system performance report) to the maximum extent possible. 

End Product: Completion Date: 

Performed by: 

St. Lucie TPO 

Set GHG emissions 

performance targets and 

report to FDOT 

September 2024 

Set 2025 safety 

performance targets and 

report to FDOT  

February 2025 

Set 2026 safety 

performance targets and 

report to FDOT 

February 2026 

 

 

  

69



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

27 

Task 2.4 Performance Measurement and Target Setting 

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2024/25 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other deductions 
$20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

Subtotal: $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

Task 2.4 Performance Measurement and Target Setting 

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2025/26 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other deductions 
$20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

Subtotal: $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 
  

70



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

28 

ELEMENT 3: RECURRING AND SYSTEMS AND PROJECT PLANNING 

 
Element 3 includes the systems planning and recurring planning activities. Specific 

work tasks are listed below and described on the following pages. 
 
Task 3.1 Long Range Transportation Planning  

 
Task 3.2 Transit Planning 

 
Task 3.3 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)  
 

Task 3.4 Congestion Management Process (CMP) 
 

Task 3.5 Bicycle-Pedestrian/Complete Streets Planning 
 
Task 3.6 Freight Planning 

 
Task 3.7 Safety and Security Planning 

 
Task 3.8 Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) Program  

 
Task 3.9 Environmental Planning 
 

Task 3.10 Automated/Connected/Electric/Shared-Use (ACES) Vehicles 
Planning 

 

 

  

71



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

29 

Task 3.1 Long Range Transportation Planning  

Purpose: 

To develop a 2050 Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) while continuing to implement 

the SmartMoves 2045 LRTP and the 2045 Treasure Coast Regional LRTP (RLRTP) which 

provide for the development, management, and operation of multimodal transportation 

systems and considers and/or integrates facilities that serve national, statewide, or 

regional transportation functions. 

Previous Work: 

SmartMoves 2045 LRTP was adopted in February 2021 which incorporated livability 

initiatives to improve mobility and quality of life through improvements that support 

multiple transportation modes. The Plan also incorporated Safety, Security, and 

Congestion Elements that inform other tasks of the UPWP.  

 

Performance measures developed for the SmartMoves 2045 LRTP were monitored and 

reviewed on an annual basis. Federal performance measures were reviewed, and Federal 

requirements with the corresponding rules promulgated were analyzed.  
 
Coordination occurred with state, regional, and local agencies to identify and prioritize 

projects which increase mobility options as part of the RLRTP.  

 

The TPO participated with FDOT in the major update process for the Strategic Intermodal 

System (SIS) Unfunded Needs and Cost Feasible Plans. 

 

The TPO partnered with St. Lucie County in the completion of the Airport Connector 

Corridor Alignment Study. 

Major Activities (performed continuously by the St. Lucie TPO unless 

otherwise noted): 

• 2050 LRTP development 

• SmartMoves 2045 LRTP amendment and implementation 

• Participation in FTP and SIS Plan implementation and updates 

End Product: Completion Date: 

Performed by: 

St. Lucie TPO 

TIP/LRTP Performance Report 2025 June 2025 

2050 LRTP with Mobility Data 

(Consultant services 

summarized below 

February 2026 

 

2050 LRTP with Mobility Data Scope of Services 

· A Public Involvement Plan (PIP) will be developed consistent with the TPO’s Public 

Participation Plan.  

· Specific strategies will be developed to execute the PIP that promotes broad dialogue 

and continuing involvement of the citizens and stakeholders in the LRTP process.  

· A website will be created for the distribution of LRTP information.  

· A socioeconomic data set based on the approved population forecasts and the 

preferred land use scenario will be developed based on the Traffic Analysis Zone (TAZ) 

structure of the Treasure Coast Regional Planning Model (TCRPM) activity-based model 

· Adopted local, regional, state long range transportation plans and comprehensive 

plans, other local and regional transportation studies, Federal and State Long Range 

Transportation Plan guidelines will be reviewed. (continued on next page) 

  

72



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

30 

Task 3.1 Long Range Transportation Planning  

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2024/25 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG)1 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other 

deductions 

$35,000 $30,000 $0 $0 $65,000 

Subtotal: $35,000 $30,000 $0 $0 $65,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

2050 LRTP with Mobility 

Data 
$0 $150,000 $0 $0 $150,000 

Subtotal: $0 $150,000 $0 $0 $150,000 

Total: $35,000 $180,000 $0 $0 $215,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

Task 3.1 Long Range Transportation Planning  

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2025/26 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG)1 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other 

deductions 

$35,000 $50,000 $0 $0 $85,000 

Subtotal: $35,000 $50,000 $0 $0 $85,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

2050 LRTP with Mobility 

Data 
$0 $150,000 $0 $0 $150,000 

Subtotal: $0 $150,000 $0 $0 $150,000 

Total: $35,000 $200,000 $0 $0 $235,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 
2050 LRTP with Mobility Data Scope of Services (continued from previous page) 

· Relevant data including mobility data, such as travel speeds, times, and reliability and 

vehicle volumes, from mobile device sources, will be collected, reviewed, and analyzed 

to identify major issues, trends, needs, and opportunities associated with the TPO 

transportation system. 

· Visualizations, such as dashboards, of the collected mobility data will be created. 

· A multimodal needs plan will be developed with the use of the TCRPM and Existing Plus 

Committed Network. 

· Goals, Objectives, Policies, and Performance Measures will be developed.  

· A Financial Resources Analysis will be completed. Transportation alternatives will be 

developed and tested using the TCRPM and that includes evaluation of the 

environmental, sociocultural, and financial impacts of the alternatives. 

· A 2050 Cost Feasible Plan will be developed.  

· A 2050 LRTP Report will be prepared. 

  

73



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

31 

Task 3.2 Transit Planning 

Purpose: 

To provide technical assistance and guidance to local and regional transit providers, to 

support public transportation planning and transit grant administration activities, and to 

develop and implement analytical methods to identify gaps in the connectivity of the 

transportation system and develop infrastructure and operational solutions that provide 

the public, especially traditionally underserved populations, with adequate access to 

essential services.     

Previous Work: 

Intermodal planning and coordination was supported through transit planning activities 

in cooperation with neighboring MPOs and South Florida Commuter Services (SFCS). St. 

Lucie County’s Transit Development Plan (TDP) Major Update was completed with 

consultant assistance funded by the TPO.  TPO Staff assisted St. Lucie County in 

preparing its TDP Annual Progress Report.  

 

The TPO coordinated and facilitated a Park & Ride Lot Program by building upon the 

results of previous planning efforts. National bus operators established service at the 

Jobs Express Terminal. Coordination with Palm Tran and FDOT resulted in commitments 

from those agencies to respectively operate and fund express bus service from St. Lucie 

County to Palm Beach County via the Jobs Express Terminal. 

 

Other transit planning activities that were continued included providing technical and 

planning assistance to St. Lucie County in order to maintain the County’s eligibility for 

the continued receipt of federal and state transit grant funds. The performance of the 

transit system was monitored. Coordination of services continued through regional 

transit meetings. 

 

The TPO funded consultant assistance and provided staff resources in support of the City 

of Fort Pierce’s proposal to construct a Brightline station in downtown Fort Pierce. 

Major Activities (performed continuously by the St. Lucie TPO unless 

otherwise noted): 

· Provision of technical assistance to the transit providers 

· Bus-related planning activities performed by St. Lucie County with its Section 5307 

funds 

· Continued support for the bus route connecting St. Lucie County and West Palm 

Beach 

· Provision of technical support for the establishment of a Transportation 

Management Association (TMA) 

• TDP Annual Progress Reports 

· Support of intermodal planning, travel demand management, and transit planning 

coordination including implementation of the SFCS Workplan 

• Park and ride lot program planning  

• Passenger rail service program planning  

End Product: Completion 

Date: 

Performed by: 

St. Lucie TPO 

TDP Annual Progress Report September 2024 

Regional Bus Route Update August 2025 

TDP Annual Progress Report September 2025 

 
  

74



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

32 

Task 3.2 Transit Planning  

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2024/25 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG)1 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other 

deductions 

$70,000 $45,000 $0 $0 $115,000 

Subtotal: $70,000 $45,000 $0 $0 $115,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $70,000 $45,000 $0 $0 $115,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

Task 3.2 Transit Planning  

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2025/26 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG)1 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other 

deductions 

$80,000 $25,000 $0 $0 $105,000 

Subtotal: $80,000 $25,000 $0 $0 $105,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $80,000 $25,000 $0 $0 $105,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

  

75



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

33 

Task 3.3 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 

Purpose: 

To annually coordinate, update, and maintain the five-year TIP which reflects Federal, 

State, and local funding and identifies all Federal, State, and locally funded 

transportation improvements within the TPO area. 

Previous Work: 

The TIP continued to be developed annually based on the LRTP, TDP, CMP, 

bicycle/pedestrian plans, airport and port plans, the Transportation Alternatives (TA) 

Project Prioritization Methodology, and other planning activities as necessary. The 

development of the TIP included the preparation of the List of Priority Projects (LOPP) 

which prioritizes roadway, transit, and CMP. The LOPP was prepared based on input from 

local agencies including transit, FDOT, and the public.  

 

The Draft Tentative Work Program was reviewed to ensure consistency with the LOPP 

and the LRTP and was considered by the TPO advisory committees and Board for 

endorsement. FDOT’s Final Tentative Work Program and the Annual Publication of 

Obligated Federal Projects was incorporated into the TIP.  

 

The TIP was adopted by the Board after a public comment period and review of the draft 

TIP by the advisory committees, and the Interactive TIP subsequently was launched. The 

Interactive TIP was maintained, and the TPO coordinated with FDOT to amend the TIP 

and process STIP amendments as needed. A consultant was utilized for maintenance of 

the Interactive TIP.  

 

Conceptual project development continued. The TPO continued to play significant roles 

in the completion of the designs for Port St. Lucie Boulevard, Midway Road, and other 

projects derived from the LRTP.  

Major Activities (performed continuously by the St. Lucie TPO unless 

otherwise noted): 

· Development of the LOPP 

· Development of the TIP with TIP/LRTP Performance Report and TIP/STIP 

amendments 

· Maintenance of the Interactive TIP  

· Participation in the phases of projects derived from the LRTP 

End Product: Completion 

Date: 

Performed by: 

St. Lucie TPO 

Review/Endorsement of FDOT’s Five-

Year Work Program 
December 2024 

FY 2025/26 – FY 2029/30 TIP Adoption & 

Interactive TIP Update (Independent 

contractor to be used.) 

June 2025 

Annual Publication of Obligated Federal 

Projects 
June 2025 

Submittal of 2025/26 LOPP to FDOT June 2025 

Review/Endorsement of FDOT’s Five-

Year Work Program 
October 2025 

FY 2026/27 – FY 2030/31 TIP Adoption & 

Interactive TIP Update (Independent 

contractor to be used.) 

June 2026 

Annual Publication of Obligated Federal 

Projects 
June 2026 

Submittal of 2026/27 LOPP to FDOT June 2026 

  

76



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

34 

Task 3.3 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2024/25 
Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other deductions 
$35,000 $0 $0 $0 $35,000 

Subtotal: $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $35,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

FY 2025/26 – FY 2029/30 

Interactive TIP Update  

(Independent Contractor) 

$12,000 $0 $0 $0 $12,000 

Subtotal: $12,000 $0 $0 $0 $12,000 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $47,000 $0 $0 $0 $47,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

Task 3.3 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2025/26 
Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other deductions 
$35,000 $0 $0 $0 $35,000 

Subtotal: $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $35,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

FY 2026/27 – FY 2030/31 

Interactive TIP Update 

(Independent Contractor) 

$13,000 $0 $0 $0 $13,000 

Subtotal: $13,000 $0 $0 $0 $13,000 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $48,000 $0 $0 $0 $48,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 
  

77



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

35 

Task 3.4 Congestion Management Process (CMP) 

Purpose: 

To maintain and monitor the CMP and identify and prioritize CMP projects for the FDOT 

Work Program and the TPO LOPP and TIP. 

Previous Work: 

The CMP Implementation Plan prioritizes projects which address identified congestion 

and safety issues using one or more “quick-fix” strategies. An Annual CMP Report was 

completed to update congestion and safety issues and explore strategies to address 

areas of concern. In coordination with FDOT Traffic Operations, the CMP and its 

Implementation Plan were utilized to allocate the TPO’s CMP box funds of $300,000-

$400,000 annually. The CMP was also used for the annual development of the LOPP, 

TIP, and Work Program, and for ongoing project prioritization as needed in coordination 

with FDOT Traffic Operations.  

 

The SmartMoves2045 LRTP contains a CMP element, the Cost Feasible Plan allocates 

funding to the CMP, and congestion management is incorporated into the Goals, 

Objectives, and Performance Measures of the SmartMoves2045 LRTP.  

 

The CMP Major Update was completed including updating the CMP procedures document 

and performance measures, updating toolbox of strategies for consideration to reduce 

congestion, addressing safety issues, providing mobility options, and prioritizing and 

recommending CMP projects for TPO plans and programs. 

 

The TPO completed a Special Events Congestion Management and Parking Plan 

(SECMAPP) which provides detailed findings and recommended improvements to 

address the congestion, parking, and safety issues of special event locations in the TPO 

area. 

 

The TPO participated significantly in the development of the FDOT Treasure Coast 

Transportation Systems Management & Operations (TSM&O) Master Plan.  

 

The St. Lucie Advanced Transportation Master Plan (ATMS) Master Plan continued to be 

implemented. 

Major Activities (performed continuously by the St. Lucie TPO unless 

otherwise noted): 

· CMP Project coordination and prioritization 

· CMP Annual Report which evaluates the performance of the CMP 

· ATMS Master Plan Implementation through participation, including attending project 

progress meetings with FDOT and FDOT’s consultant in the implementation of the 

ATMS Master Plan; coordination with local agencies; and the development and 

prioritization of subsequent phases in the TPO’s LOPP 

· Support the implementation of the Treasure Coast TSM&O Master Plan where it is 

consistent with the ATMS Master Plan. 

End Product: Completion Date: 
Performed by: 

St. Lucie TPO 2025 CMP Annual Report April 2026 

  

78



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

36 

Task 3.4 Congestion Management Process (CMP) 

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2024/25 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other 

deductions 

$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 

Subtotal: $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

Task 3.4 Congestion Management Process (CMP) 

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2025/26 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe benefits, 

and other deductions 
$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 

Subtotal: $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

  

79



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

37 

Task 3.5 Bicycle-Pedestrian/Complete Streets Planning 

Purpose: 

To review, update, and implement the St. Lucie Walk-Bike Network, build upon previous 

complete streets planning efforts, and continue the ongoing planning and coordinating 

efforts which support the provision of bicycle, pedestrian, and greenway facilities.  

Previous Work: 

The TPO maintained and updated the inventory of bicycle and pedestrian facilities, 

known as the St. Lucie Walk-Bike Network, and performed activities as needed in 

support of its implementation. Through the St. Lucie Walk-Bike Network, TPO staff 

continued to coordinate with the local governments, the St. Lucie School District, FDOT, 

Florida Department of Environmental Protection Office of Greenways and Trails, and the 

East Coast Greenway Alliance regarding bicycle/pedestrian/greenway issues and the 

planning, prioritizing, funding, and implementation of bicycle/pedestrian/greenway 

facilities. Coordination of complete streets planning activities also occurred through the 

BPAC, TAC, and CAC. Potential bicycle/pedestrian/greenway and complete streets 

projects were identified for funding and considered for prioritization in the TPO’s LOPP.  

 

Programmed projects reviewed through the Electronic Review Comments (ERC) system 

were evaluated by the TPO based on bicycle and pedestrian-friendliness.  

 

The St. Lucie Walk-Bike Network was updated.  

 

The TPO continued to develop plans and implement projects to address specific gaps or 

obstacles impeding the extension of the East Coast Greenway and the Florida SUN Trail 

through the St. Lucie TPO area.  

 

The SUN Trail Network Port of Fort Pierce Overpass Connector Feasibility Study was 

completed 

Major Activities (performed continuously by the St. Lucie TPO unless 

otherwise noted): 

· Local coordination/support and project review and prioritization including assisting 

agencies with sidewalk inventories, gap studies, etc. to support their compliance with 

ADA requirements 
· East Coast Greenway (ECG)/Florida SUN Trail coordination and implementation 

End Product: Completion Date: 

Performed by: 

St. Lucie TPO 

Electric Bicycle Study February 2025 

Oxbow Eco-Center Pedestrian Link 

Feasibility Study (Consultant 

services summarized below) 

April 2026 

 

Oxbow Eco-Center Pedestrian Link Feasibility Study Scope of Services 

A Feasibility study for the development of a pedestrian link between the Oxbow Eco-Center 

and the Citrus Hammock Preserve on the eastern side of the St. Lucie River will be 

conducted that includes the following: 

· Engagement/coordination meetings conducted with stakeholders.  

· Analyses of the existing conditions. 

· Development of a typical section.  

· Analyses of alignment alternatives for advantages and disadvantages including 

environmental and sociocultural impacts, right-of-way considerations, and cost. 

· Outreach to the public that includes an in-person public workshop.  

· Preparation and presentation of a Feasibility Study Report that documents the activities 

and analyses completed and recommends a preferred alignment alternative.  

  

80



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

38 

Task 3.5 Bicycle-Pedestrian/Complete Streets Planning 

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2024/25 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG)1 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other deductions 
$30,0002 $50,000 $0 $0 $80,000 

Subtotal: $30,000 $50,000 $0 $0 $80,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $30,000 $50,000 $0 $0 $80,000 
 

1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 
2Funding significantly exceeds the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law requirement to set aside 

2.5 percent ($20,076) of the total PL (CPG) allocation for FY 2024/25 ($803,048). 

 
 

Task 3.5 Bicycle-Pedestrian/Complete Streets Planning 

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2025/26 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other deductions 
$40,0003 $45,000 $0 $0 $85,000 

Subtotal: $40,000 $45,000 $0 $0 $85,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

Oxbow Eco-Center Pedestrian 

Link Feasibility Study 
$40,000 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 

Subtotal: $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $80,000 $45,000 $0 $0 $125,000 
 

1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 
3Funding significantly exceeds the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law requirement to set aside 

2.5 percent ($20,315) of the total PL (CPG) allocation for FY 2025/26 ($812,581).  

81



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

39 

Task 3.6 Freight Planning 

Purpose: 

To continue promoting the St. Lucie TPO area as the freight gateway to South Florida 

while enhancing the initiatives of agency partners in support of the important freight 

facilities of regional and Statewide significance located within the St. Lucie TPO area.   

Previous Work: 

The TPO continued to implement the Treasure Coast Regional Freight Plan that was 

developed with the Martin and Indian River MPOs.  

 

The TPO continued to work with FDOT to acquire data and enhance the regional freight 

model to specifically evaluate transportation investments and their benefits with regard 

to freight mobility.  

 

The TPO worked with FDOT on the Freight Activity Areas Identification and Freight 

Network Segments Study. 

 

The TPO completed Phase II of the Drone Port/Advanced Air Mobility (AAM) Study to 

identify suitable destination locations within the TPO area for vertiports/drone ports. 

Further evaluation was performed on the Treasure Coast International Airport property 

to identify potential origin locations for vertiport and related development.  

 

The TPO updated the St. Lucie Freight Network. 

 

The TPO continued to participate in the MPOAC Freight Advisory Committee.  
 
The TPO continued to implement the St. Lucie Freight Network and identify and analyze 

operational improvements to the freight network through the implementation of the 

St. Lucie ATMS.  

Major Activities (performed continuously by the St. Lucie TPO unless 

otherwise noted): 

· Implement the Treasure Coast Regional Freight Plan and other regional plans 

· Implement the Port of Fort Piece Master Plan and other local plans 

· Maintain liaison with various agency staff 

· Monitor and update the St. Lucie Freight Network 

· Support continued implementation of the St. Lucie Freight Logistics Zone 

· Attend various freight coordination meetings 

End Product: Completion Date: 
Performed by: 

St. Lucie TPO St. Lucie Freight Network Update December 2025 

 
  

82



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

40 

Task 3.6 Freight Planning  

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2024/25 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other deductions 
$20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

Subtotal: $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

Task 3.6 Freight Planning  

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2025/26 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other deductions 
$20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

Subtotal: $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

  

83



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

41 

Task 3.7 Safety and Security Planning 

Purpose: 

To provide for the consideration and implementation of projects, strategies, and services 

which increase the safety and security of the transportation system and users of the 

system and maintain the TPO’s Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP). 

Previous Work: 

The FDOT/University of Florida Signal 4 Analytics Crash Database was used to facilitate 

safety project identification and analysis. Based on the crash data analyses, educational 

safety programs were developed and implemented, and potential safety projects were 

identified for funding and considered for inclusion in the CMP and prioritization in the 

TPO’s LOPP.  

 

Spot Speed Studies were completed to improve roadway safety at the local high crash 

locations identified by the Speed Kills Analysis through speed management. 

 

Midway Road Safety Study was completed to evaluate the Midway corridor with regard 

to safety and traffic operations and identify potential improvements to reduce the 

severity, frequency, and risk for crashes; to manage speeds; and to enhance traffic 

operations. 

 

The TPO continued to perform a COOP exercise annually. The COOP was updated 

annually to incorporate improvements as a result of lessons learned from the exercises 

and to add a section devoted to pandemic procedures.  

Major Activities (performed continuously by the St. Lucie TPO unless 

otherwise noted): 

• Analysis of the use of automated enforcement of speeding violations. 

· Identification of low-cost, short-term bicycle/pedestrian safety improvements that 

might include distribution of reflective items. 

· Rail Crossing Safey Infrastructure and Technology Reviews 

• COOP activations, as needed 

• CTST Meetings (quarterly) 

• Signal 4 Analytics Crash Database Utilization 

· Provision of technical support for local speed management efforts 

End Product: Completion Date: 

Performed by: 

St. Lucie TPO 

Update of Safety Graphics Displays 

(Independent contractor to be used.)  
February 2025 

COOP Exercise and Update June 2025 

COOP Exercise and Update June 2026 
 
 
  

84



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

42 

Task 3.7 Safety and Security Planning  

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2024/25 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other deductions 
$25,000 $0 $0 $0 $25,000 

Subtotal: $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $25,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

Update of Safety Graphics 

Displays (Independent 

Contractor) 

$9,000 $0 $0 $0 $9,000 

Subtotal: $9,000 $0 $0 $0 $9,000 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $34,000 $0 $0 $0 $34,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

Task 3.7 Safety and Security Planning  

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2025/26 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other deductions 
$20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

Subtotal: $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

 

  

85



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

43 

Task 3.8 Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) Program  

Purpose: 

To provide coordination and planning services for the St. Lucie County TD Program in 

accordance with Chapter 427 FS, Rule 41-2 FAC, and the Americans with Disabilities Act 

(ADA) which includes the identification of unmet TD needs. 

Previous Work: 

TPO Staff assisted the Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) in its role of 

providing safe, coordinated TD services to elderly persons, persons with disabilities, 

veterans, at-risk children, and economically disadvantaged citizens. TPO staff assisted 

the redesignation of St. Lucie County as CTC and in the development of the 

Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan/Coordinated Plan and Annual Update. Staff 

assisted in finding alternatives to accommodate unmet local needs.  

 

TPO staff provided administrative services to the LCB. This included preparation of 

meeting summaries, agendas, grant applications, progress reports, and other products. 

Staff also assessed legislatively mandated changes to the state TD program and 

undertook TD-related activities as necessary to comply with state legislation.  

 

The TD program is coordinated with other public transit planning and services, including 

veteran services, through the LCB and associated work products. TPO staff coordinated 

with FDOT, the County, and the transit operator and provided technical assistance for 

the transitioning of non-life sustaining trips from the current demand response program 

services to fixed or deviated route services. 

 

The TD Program continued to incorporate Environmental Justice into its mission by 

identifying and addressing, as appropriate, the effects of programs, policies, and 

activities on minority and low-income populations. The TPO continued to strive to 

involve the potentially affected public and to develop partnerships with and enhance the 

participation by traditionally underserved communities. 

Major Activities (performed continuously by the St. Lucie TPO unless 

otherwise noted): 

· LCB Meeting Support 

· LCB Planning Support  

· CTC Technical Assistance 

· TD Grant Applications 

· TD Invoice and Progress Reports 

End Product: Completion Date: 

Performed by: 

St. Lucie TPO 

TDSP 2024 Annual Update December 2024 

TDSP 2025 Annual Update December 2025 

CTC 2025 Evaluation June 2025 

CTC 2026 Evaluation June 2026 

LCB Meeting Summaries 

(Independent 

contractor services to 

be used) 

After the LCB Meetings 

  

86



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

44 

Task 3.8 Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) Program  

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2024/25 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG) 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other deductions 
$0 $0 $23,038 $0 $23,038 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $23,038 $0 $23,038 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

LCB Meeting Summaries $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $2,000 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $2,000 

C.  Travel: 

Travel Expenses $0 $0 $800 $0 $800 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $800 $0 $800 

D. Direct Expenses: 

Advertising $0 $0 $550 $0 $550 

General & Administrative 

Charges 
$0 $0 $1,500 $0 $1,500 

Training & Seminar $0 $0 $300 $0 $300 

Postage $0 $0 $15 $0 $15 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $2,365 $0 $2,365 

Total: $0 $0 $28,203 $0 $28,203 
 

 

 
 

Task 3.8 Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) Program  

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2025/26 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG) 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other deductions 
$0 $0 $23,038 $0 $23,038 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $23,038 $0 $23,038 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

LCB Meeting Summaries $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $2,000 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $2,000 

C.  Travel: 

Travel Expenses $0 $0 $800 $0 $800 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $800 $0 $800 

D. Direct Expenses: 

Advertising $0 $0 $550 $0 $550 

General & Administrative 

Charges 
$0 $0 $1,500 $0 $1,500 

Training & Seminar $0 $0 $300 $0 $300 

Postage $0 $0 $15 $0 $15 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $2,365 $0 $2,365 

Total: $0 $0 $28,203 $0 $28,203 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3.  

87



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

45 

Task 3.9 Environmental Planning 

Purpose: 

To continue the integration of environmental considerations into the TPO’s metropolitan 

planning program 

Previous Work: 

The SmartMoves 2045 LRTP incorporates environmental mitigation strategies from a 

system-wide perspective and considers environmental mitigation strategies in 

consultation with State, Tribal, and local agencies. The TPO continued to link planning 

with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). A base map of environmentally 

sensitive areas was updated in the SmartMoves 2045 LRTP which identifies 

environmental features such as major hydrology, environmental lands, and Special 

Emphasis Areas identified by local stakeholders such as the St. Lucie Conservation 

Alliance and the St. Lucie County Environmental Management Department.  

 

As a member of the St. Lucie County Resilience Planning Steering Committee, and the 

TPO has been working collaboratively with the County Environmental Resources 

Department staff during the development of the St. Lucie County Vulnerability 

Assessment Report and the Regional Resilience Plan. 

 

As a member of the Environmental Technical Advisory Team (ETAT), the TPO participated 

in the FDOT Efficient Transportation Decision Making (ETDM) process to further integrate 

consideration of potential project effects on the cultural, socio-cultural, and natural 

environments into transportation decision-making and continue early coordination with 

resource agencies in addressing mitigation activities. The TPO participated in the phases 

for its Priority Projects where the environmental mitigation activities were further refined. 

 

The TPO completed a Carbon Reduction Strategy to evaluate strategies that reduce 

carbon emissions and expand transportation options for TPO area. 

 

The TPO supported the establishment of the Florida Ecological Greenways Network 

(FEGN) which prioritizes a functionally connected statewide network of public and private 

conservation lands to conserve and maintain ecological greenway connectivity and 

protect, connect, and conserve Florida’s native wildlife and natural systems.  

 

As extreme weather and changes in environmental conditions continue to present 

significant and growing risks to the nation’s vital transportation systems, the TPO 

performed a Transportation Asset/Service Vulnerability Assessment Update to integrate 

the environmental considerations into the TPO’s metropolitan planning program. 

Major Activities (performed continuously by the St. Lucie TPO unless 

otherwise noted): 

· Participate as ETAT member in ETDM Planning and Programming Screens 

· Coordinate with State and local agencies to address climate change and to improve 

the climate adaptation/resiliency and reduce natural disaster risk 

· Coordinate with State and local agencies responsible for natural resources, 

environmental protection, conservation, and historic preservation  

· Integrate FEGN, CCB, and State Wildlife Action Plan into transportation plans 

End Product: Completion Date: 
Performed by: 

St. Lucie TPO 
Set GHG Emissions Performance Targets and 

Report to FDOT 
September 2024 

  

88



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

46 

Task 3.9 Environmental Planning 

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2024/25 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other deductions 
$20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

Subtotal: $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Indirect Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

Task 3.9 Environmental Planning 

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2025/26 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other deductions 
$20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

Subtotal: $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Indirect Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

 

  

89



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

47 

Task 3.10 Automated/Connected/Electric/Shared-Use (ACES)  

Vehicles Planning 

Purpose: 

To plan and support innovative technologies and business practices with regard to ACES 

vehicles and determine how best to address the challenges and opportunities presented 

by ACES vehicles  

Previous Work: 

Technological advancements in transportation have the potential to transform the urban 

landscape. Automated vehicles, once thought to be futuristic, are being tested on public 

roadways. Shared mobility providers, the transit industry, and the freight industry have 

become early adopters of advanced technologies. Adopting and supporting innovative 

technologies and business practices supports the Florida Transportation Plan and the 

federal planning factors and goals found in the Federal requirements and legislation.   

 

The Electric Vehicle Charging Station Plan Update was completed which developed 

criteria for siting electric vehicle charging stations and selected appropriate locations 

based on the criteria. 

 

The Sustainable Transportation Plan was developed which built upon previous ACES, 

micro-mobility studies and land use and infrastructure planning for sustainable mobility. 

Special emphasis in the Sustainable Transportation Plan was given to EV charging 

infrastructure in alignment with current federal funding opportunities.  
Major Activities (performed continuously by the St. Lucie TPO unless 

otherwise noted): 

· Participate in training activities regarding advanced transportation technologies 

· Attend/host local stakeholder meetings related to ACES 

· Vehicle Sharing Study – analysis of methods to provide residents and visitors 

with short-term access to automobiles. 

· Autonomous Vehicle Study - a status report on self-driving vehicle trends. 

End Product: Completion Date: 

Performed by: 

St. Lucie TPO 

Autonomous Vehicle Study 

Update  
October 2024 

Vehicle Sharing Study 

(Consultant services 

summarized below) 

June 2026 

 

Vehicle Sharing Study Scope of Services 

An analysis of methods to determine how to provide residents and visitors with short-term 

access to automobiles will be conducted that includes the following:  

· Review and inventory of existing vehicle sharing plans and infrastructure. 

· Evaluation of vehicle sharing needs especially in Title VI/EJ Communities in TPO area. 

· Identification and analysis of gaps in and opportunities for vehicle sharing 

infrastructure. 

· Development of strategies and projects to address needs, gaps, and opportunities. 

· Consideration of funding sources for the implementation of strategies and projects. 

· Outreach to the public and stakeholders for input on needs, gaps, opportunities, 

strategies, and projects. 

· Identification of the potential impact of vehicle sharing activities on the transit and 

roadway networks. 

· Preparation of a report that documents the activities and evaluations/analyses 

completed and recommends strategies/projects for funding/implementation. 

 

  

90



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

48 

Task 3.10 ACES Vehicles Planning 

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2024/25 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other 

deductions 

$20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

Subtotal: $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

Task 3.10 ACES Vehicles Planning 

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2025/26 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG)1 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other 

deductions 

$20,000 $50,000 $0 $0 $70,000 

Subtotal: $20,000 $50,000 $0 $0 $70,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

Vehicle Sharing Study $0 $30,000 $0 $0 $30,000 

Subtotal: $0 $30,000 $0 $0 $30,000 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $20,000 $80,000 $0 $0 $100,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 
  

91



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

49 

ELEMENT 4: REGIONAL AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL PLANNING AND 

COORDINATION 
 

Element 4 includes the planning and coordination activities with other MPOs, State 
and Federal agencies, the TCRPC, and local agencies and governments that are 
not readily classified within the other elements. Specific work tasks are listed 

below and described on the following pages. 
 

Task 4.1 Models of Regional Planning Cooperation 
 
Task 4.2 Intergovernmental Planning and Coordination 

 
  

92



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

50 

Task 4.1 Models of Regional Planning Cooperation 

Purpose: 

To continue as a model of regional planning cooperation and to coordinate with Federal, 

State, and other public agencies which are not considered to be local agencies or 

governments (such as other MPOs, FDOT, and the TCRPC) on projects and activities 

that are not identified within specific tasks in the other elements of the UPWP while 

participating in activities of the Treasure Coast Transportation Council (TCTC). 

Previous Work: 

TPO staff continued to coordinate with the FDOT, TCRPC, Martin and Indian River MPO 

staffs and coordinated with various non-local governmental and public agencies on 

regional transportation projects and activities including the implementation of the 

Treasure Coast Transportation Systems Management and Operations (TSM&O) Master 

Plan and participation in the Treasure Coast Traffic Management Coalition. To 

accomplish this task, TPO staff attended meetings; reviewed plans, reports, and other 

documents; provided data, information, comments, and recommendations; and 

facilitated presentations to the TPO Board and advisory committees on behalf of the 

agencies, as appropriate.  

 

The TPO shared resources to implement regional public outreach, data collection, and 

other common tasks.  
 

The 2045 Treasure Coast RLRTP was developed which included extensive regional 

coordination. In addition, the TPO continued to participate in other miscellaneous 

regional planning and coordination meetings. 

 

The TPO staff provided meeting schedules, agendas, minutes, packets, notices, and 

other staff support, as necessary, for meetings of the TCTC and the TCTAC.  

Major Activities (performed continuously by the St. Lucie TPO unless 

otherwise noted): 

· Complete and implement local and regional plans including the 2045 RLRTP and the 

Treasure Coast Freight Plan 

· 2045 RLRTP amendments 

· Maintain liaison with various regional agency staff 

· Coordinate with rural governmental entities outside of the current MPA boundaries 

that are impacted by transportation movements between regions 

· Support local agency applications for TRIP grant funding 

· Support and participate in TCTAC and TCTC and other regional meetings 

· Prepare regional meeting agendas, minutes, packets, etc.  

End Product: Completion Date: 

Performed by: 

St. Lucie TPO 

Set GHG Emissions Performance Target for 

Port St. Lucie UZA and Report to FDOT 
September 2024 

Submittal of 2025 TRIP Grant Application(s) March 2025 

Submittal of 2026 TRIP Grant Application(s) March 2026 

 
  

93



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

51 

Task 4.1 Models of Regional Planning Cooperation  

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2024/25 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other 

deductions 

$20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

Subtotal: $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

Task 4.1 Models of Regional Planning Cooperation  

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2025/26 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other 

deductions 

$20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

Subtotal: $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 
 
  

94



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

52 

Task 4.2 Intergovernmental Planning and Coordination 

Purpose: 

To coordinate with local agencies and governments on projects and activities that are 

not identified within specific tasks in other elements of the UPWP. 

Previous Work: 

TPO staff coordinated with various local agencies and governments on transportation 

projects and activities affecting the MPA. The planning and coordination activities 

included attending meetings; reviewing plans, reports, and other documents; and 

providing data, information, comments, and recommendations.  

 

TPO staff reviewed and commented on various land use amendments and development 

plans for local governments in the MPA. The TCRPM continued to be utilized to assist in 

the analysis of transportation issues.  

 

TPO staff also provided technical support to the local agencies and governments in the 

completion of transportation improvement grant applications.  

 

To promote consistency among local plans and ensure appropriate improvements from 

development, the TPO identified projects based on its TIP, LOPP, and FDOT’s Work 

Program to be included in Capital Improvement Elements of local government 

comprehensive plans.  

 

The TPO conducted reviews of local projects from a traffic and transportation perspective 

to evaluate consistency with regional and long range plans. The TPO also reviewed 

relevant plans regarding airport and port planning activities in relation to TPO planning 

and programming activities. 

 

TPO staff facilitated the program for the Treasure Coast Scenic Highway (TCSH), which 

traverses the St. Lucie TPO MPA, to enhance and protect corridor resources and facilities.  

Major Activities (performed continuously by the St. Lucie TPO unless 

otherwise noted): 

• Treasure Coast Scenic Highway (TCSHP) program implementation and support 

· TCSHP Website/social media management (independent contractor to be used) 

· Attend/host intergovernmental meetings 

• Review plans, reports, and other documents. 

• Provide data, information, comments, and recommendations. 

• Prepare meeting agendas, minutes, packets, etc. 

• Provide transportation grant support including for Transportation Alternatives 

Program (TAP) grants 

· Serve as a resource for information and technical assistance in local government 

compliance with ADA 

· Development and maintenance of Transportation Impact Tracker 

End Product: Completion Date: 

Performed by: 

St. Lucie TPO 

TCSH 2025 Annual Work Plan December 2024 

TCSH 2024 Annual Report February 2025  

Submittal of 2025 TAP Grant 

Application(s) 
March 2025 

TCSH 2026 Annual Work Plan December 2025 

TCSH 2025 Annual Report February 2026 

Submittal of 2026 TAP Grant 

Application(s) 
March 2026 

  

95



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

53 

Task 4.2 Intergovernmental Planning and Coordination  

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2024/25 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other 

deductions 

$25,000 $0 $0 $0 $25,000 

Subtotal: $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $25,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

TCSHP Website/social media 

management (Independent 

Contractor) 

$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 

Subtotal: $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $35,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

Task 4.2 Intergovernmental Planning and Coordination  

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2025/26 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other 

deductions 

$25,000 $0 $0 $0 $25,000 

Subtotal: $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $25,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

TCSHP Website/social media 

management (Independent 

Contractor) 

$12,000 $0 $0 $0 $12,000 

Subtotal: $12,000 $0 $0 $0 $12,000 

C.  Travel: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

D.  Other Direct Expenses: 

 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Subtotal: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total: $37,000 $0 $0 $0 $37,000 

 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

  

96



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

54 

ELEMENT 5: PUBLIC PARTICIPATION, EDUCATION & OUTREACH 

 
Element 5 includes the activities conducted to ensure continuing, comprehensive, 

and cooperative public involvement in the transportation planning process. 
Providing the public with educational opportunities is intended to enhance and 
strengthen the level of public participation which is consistent with the UPWP 

Planning Priorities and the Federal Planning Factors. Specific work tasks are listed 
below and described on the following pages. 

 
Task 5.1 Public Participation, Education & Outreach 
 

 
 

  

97



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

55 

Task 5.1 Public Participation, Education & Outreach 

Purpose: 

To ensure that the TPO’s public involvement process meets or exceeds Federal and State 

regulations and provides opportunities for the public to participate in the transportation 

planning process.   
Previous Work: 

The TPO continued to enhance its public participation activities. Techniques included the 

use of the TPO website, visualization techniques, press releases, public access TV 

broadcasts, social media, and smartphone applications; the provision of graphic 

presentations at meetings; the provision of access for persons with disabilities to all 

meetings; and the availability of alternative language translations to facilitate the 

participation of non-English speaking populations in the public participation process. All 

TPO meetings continued to be open to the public and conducted in geographically 

diverse locations including outside of typical governmental administration buildings to 

enhance public attendance. Staff conducted demographic analysis and identified trends 

at neighborhood levels through GIS capabilities combined with field work. Public 

comment periods for work products were maintained, and TPO staff continued to 

respond to routine inquiries from the public. Annual Evaluations of Effectiveness of the 

Public Participation Plan (PPP) were conducted.  

 

The TPO continued to strive to involve the potentially affected public and enhance the 

participation by traditionally underserved communities. Achieving environmental justice 

in the planning process continued to be part of the TPO mission by identifying and 

addressing, as appropriate, the effects of programs, policies, and activities on minority 

and low income populations. The TPO annually reviewed its Title VI program and 

complied with all Title VI and environmental justice requirements. The TPO Board 

adopted a major update of the Title VI Plan. 

 

The TPO website was continuously updated to enhance user-friendliness and 

visualization and was instrumental in facilitating public input on the development of the 

UPWP, PPP, and other projects.  

 

TPO staff provided support to the CAC and BPAC. Regular meetings of the CAC, TAC, 

BPAC, LCB, and TPO Board were conducted, all of which were open to the public.  

Major Activities (performed continuously by the St. Lucie TPO unless 

otherwise noted): 

· Implementation of the PPP  

· CAC/BPAC meetings and support 

· Website/social media management (independent contractor to be used) 

· Title VI and environmental justice compliance 

End Product: 
Completion 

Date: 
Performed by: 

St. Lucie TPO 
PPP Major Update (consultant 

services summarized below) 
December 2024 

Annual PPP Evaluation of 

Effectiveness and Update 
February 2026 

 
PPP Major Update Scope of Services 

To support the completion of a PPP Major Update by TPO staff, consultant services will 

be utilized that includes the following:  

· identification and testing of the latest electronic methods and visualization 

techniques to provide information to and receive input from the public. (continued 

on next page)  

98



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

56 

Task 5.1 Public Participation, Education & Outreach  

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2024/25 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG)1 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other 

deductions 

 

$30,000 

 

$30,000 $0 $0 $60,000 

 

Subtotal: 
$30,000 $30,000 $0 $0 $60,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

Website/social media 

management 
$50,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000 

PPP Major Update $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $20,000 

Subtotal: $50,000 $20,000 $0 $0 $70,000 

Total: $80,000 $50,000 $0 $0 $130,000 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

Task 5.1 Public Participation, Education & Outreach  

Estimated Budget Detail for FY 2025/26 

Budget 

Category 

Budget 

Category 

Description 

PL 

(CPG)1 

SU 

(STBG) 

FCTD 

(TD) 

TPO 

Local 
Total 

Contract Number:      

A.  Personnel Services: 

TPO Staff Salaries, fringe 

benefits, and other 

deductions 

 

$30,000 

 

$0 $0 $0 $30,000 

 

Subtotal: 
$30,000 $0 $0 $0 $30,000 

B.  Contract/Consultant Services: 

Website/social media 

management 
$50,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000 

Subtotal: $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000 

Total: $80,000 $0 $0 $0 $80,000 
1Federal funds are soft matched by the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3. 

 

PPP Major Update Scope of Services (continued from previous page) 

· Exploration and testing of the latest outreach and media techniques including 

community media; electronic and social media; and neighborhood, school, and 

community services outreach. 

· Incorporation of the framework for public participation developed by the 

International Association of Public Participation (IAP2) which describes a spectrum of 

public involvement ranging from informing the public to empowering the public.  

· Incorporation of the U.S. DOT Equity Action Plan which highlights four focus areas:  

wealth creation, power of community, interventions, and expanding access. 

· Incorporation of the results of the TPO’s Community Profiles.  

· Development and visualization of performance measures to evaluate the 

effectiveness of the TPO's PPP.  

 

 

99



 Unified Planning Work Program 

 DRAFT FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

57 

IV. SUMMARY BUDGET TABLES 

 
 

 

100



 Unified Planning Work Program 

  FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

58 

TABLE 1 Work Task Summary 

 
The following table summarizes the end products, target dates, and budget for each UPWP element and work task: 

 
 

Element Task End Products Completion Dates 
FY 

2024/25 
Budget 

FY 
2025/26 
Budget 

1.  Program 
Administration 

1.1 Program Management 

2025 Legislative Priorities (uses local funds only) December 2024 

$434,171 $426,581 

2025 Annual Joint Certification Review May 2025 

Quadrennial Federal Certification Review September 2025 

2026 Legislative Priorities (uses local funds only) October 2025 

2026 Annual Joint Certification Review May 2026 

1.2 UPWP Development 

FY 2026/27 – FY 2027/28 UPWP Call for Projects December 2025 

$5,000 $25,000 

Review by Advisory Committees & Board March/April 2026 

Transmittal to FDOT March 2026 

Public Comment Period March/April 2026 

Adoption by Board April 2026 

Transmittal to FHWA & FTA May 2026 

UPWP Amendments As needed 

2.  Modeling, GIS, 
Data Management, 
and Performance 

Measurement 

2.1 Travel Demand Modeling 2050 LRTP Update Modeling Activities February 2026 $10,000 $10,000 

2.2 GIS And Data 
Management 

Mobility Data from 2050 LRTP Update February 2026 $40,000 $30,000 

2.3 Traffic Count Program 
Management 

2025 Traffic Count and LOS Report/US-1 Corridor Congestion June/April 2025 
$75,000 $50,000 

2026 Traffic Count and LOS Report  June 2026 

2.4 Performance 
Measurement and Target 
Setting 

Set GHG Emissions Performance Targets and Report to FDOT September 2024 

$20,000 $20,000 Set 2025 Safety Performance Targets and Report to FDOT February 2025 

Set 2026 Safety Performance Targets and Report to FDOT February 2026 

3.  Recurring and 
Systems and 

Project Planning 

3.1 Long Range 
Transportation Planning  

TIP/LRTP Performance Report 2025 June 2025 
$215,000 $235,000 

2050 LRTP Update with Mobility Data February 2026 

3.2 Transit Planning 

TDP Annual Progress Report September 2024 

$115,000 $105,000 Regional Bus Route Update August 2025 

TDP Annual Progress Report September 2025 

3.3 Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP) 

Review/Endorsement of FDOT’s Five-Year Work Program December 2024 

$47,000 $48,000 

FY 2025/26 – FY 2029/30 TIP Adoption & Interactive TIP Update  June 2025 

Annual Publication of Obligated Federal Projects June 2025 

Submittal of 2025/26 LOPP to FDOT June 2025 

Review/Endorsement of FDOT’s Five-Year Work Program October 2025 

FY 2026/27 – FY 2030/31 TIP Adoption & Interactive TIP Update  June 2026 

Annual Publication of Obligated Federal Projects June 2026 

Submittal of 2026/27 LOPP to FDOT June 2026 

3.4 Congestion Management 
Process (CMP) 

2025 CMP Annual Report April 2026 $10,000 $10,000 

 
  

101



 Unified Planning Work Program 

  FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

59 

Element Task End Products Completion Dates 
FY 

2024/25 
Budget 

FY 
2025/26 
Budget 

3.  Recurring and 
Systems and 

Project Planning 
(continued) 

3.5 Bicycle-
Pedestrian/Complete Streets 
Planning 

Electric Bicycle Study February 2025 
$80,000 $125,000 

Oxbow Eco-Center Pedestrian Link Feasibility Study April 2026 

3.6 Freight Planning St. Lucie Freight Network Update December 2025 $20,000 $20,000 

3.7 Safety and Security 
Planning 

Update of Safety Graphics Displays February 2025 

$34,000 $20,000 COOP Exercise and Update June 2025 

COOP Exercise and Update June 2026 

3.8 Transportation 
Disadvantaged (TD) Program  

TDSP 2024 Annual Update December 2024 

$28,203 $28,203 

TDSP 2025 Annual Update December 2025 

CTC 2025 Evaluation June 2025 

CTC 2026 Evaluation June 2026 

LCB Meeting Summaries 
After the LCB 
Meetings 

3.9 Environmental Planning Set GHG Emissions Performance Targets and Report to FDOT September 2024 $20,000 $20,000 

3.10 ACES Vehicles Planning 
Autonomous Vehicle Study Update October 2024 

$20,000 $100,000 
Vehicle Sharing Study June 2026 

4.  Regional and 
Intergovernmental 

Planning and 
Coordination 

4.1 Models of Regional 
Planning Cooperation 

Set GHG Emissions Performance Target for Port St. Lucie UZA 

and Report to FDOT 
September 2024 

$20,000 $20,000 
Submittal of 2025 TRIP Grant Application(s) March 2025 

Submittal of 2026 TRIP Grant Application(s) March 2026 

4.2 Intergovernmental 
Planning and Coordination 

TCSH 2025 Annual Work Plan December 2024 

$35,000 $37,000 

TCSH 2024 Annual Report February 2025  

Submittal of 2025 TAP Grant Application(s) March 2025 

TCSH 2026 Annual Work Plan December 2025 

TCSH 2025 Annual Report February 2026 

Submittal of 2026 TAP Grant Application(s) March 2026 

5.  Public 
Participation, 
Education & 
Outreach 

5.1 Public Participation, 
Education & Outreach 

PPP Major Update December 2024 

$130,000 $80,000 

Annual PPP Evaluation of Effectiveness and Update February 2026 

    
 $1,358,374 $1,409,784 

    

102



 Unified Planning Work Program 

  FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

60 

In addition to identifying planning priorities, elements, and tasks, the UPWP 

identifies de-obligated funds, carry-forward funds, close-out balances, fiscal year 
allocations, available funds, and fiscal year expenses.  

 
De-obligated funds are those funds that were budgeted in the previous UPWP but 
were not spent and were de-obligated. Carry-forward funds are those funds that 

were available but were not budgeted in the previous UPWP and, therefore, are 
accumulated. Close-out balances are those funds that were budgeted in a previous 

fiscal year but were not spent and were not de-obligated. The de-obligated funds, 
carry-forward funds, and close-out balances are combined with the fiscal year 
allocations to determine the available funds for the fiscal year.  

 
FDOT policy limits the PL fund carry-forward to 50 percent of the annual allocation. 

The following tables summarize the financial information for the two fiscal years 
of the UPWP: 
 

TABLE 2 Revenues (FY 2024/25) 

 

SOURCE OF FUNDS 
PL 

(CPG) 
SU 

(STBG) 
FCTD 
(TD) 

TPO 
Local 

Totals 

Carry-Forward (without 
FY 2022/23 -FY 2023/24 
Close-Out Balance) * 

$125,123 $0 $0 $2,000 $127,123 

FY 2022/23- FY 2023/24 
Close-Out Balance 

* $0 $0 $0 $0 

FY 2024/25 Allocation $803,048 $400,000 $28,203 $0 $1,231,251 

State Match 
(FDOT D Funds) 

** ** N/A $0 $0 

Local Match (St. Lucie 
County) 

** ** N/A $0 $0 

Total FY 2024/25 
Available 

$928,171 $400,000 $28,203 $2,000 $1,358,374 

FY 2024/25 UPWP 
Expenses 

$928,171 $400,000 $28,203 $2,000 $1,358,374 

 
Notes 

* The Close-Out Balance applies to PL Funds only, will be determined after FY 2024/25, and will not be 

available until FY 2025/26. 

** The Local Match for PL & SU Funds is included in the State Match for PL & SU Funds which is identified on 

page 3 and is detailed by Task in Tables 4-7. 

103



 Unified Planning Work Program 

  FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

61 

TABLE 3 Revenues (FY 2025/26) 

 

SOURCE OF FUNDS 
PL 

(CPG) 
SU 

(STBG) 
FCTD 
(TD) 

TPO 
Local 

Totals 

Carry-Forward (without 
FY 2022/23 -FY 2023/24 
Close-Out Balance) * 

$0 $0 $0 $2,000 $2,000 

FY 2023/24 De-Obligation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FY 2022/23- FY 2023/24 
Close-Out Balance 

$167,000 $0 $0 $0 $167,000 

FY 2025/26 Allocation $812,581 $400,000 $28,203 $0 $1,240,784 

State Match 

(FDOT D Funds) 
** ** N/A $0 $0 

Local Match (St. Lucie 
County) 

** ** N/A $0 $0 

Total FY 2025/26 
Available 

$979,581 $400,000 $28,203 $2,000 $1,409,784 

FY 2025/26 UPWP 
Expenses 

$979,581 $400,000 $28,203 $2,000 $1,409,784 

 
Notes 

* The Close-Out Balance is estimated applies to PL Funds only, will be determined after FY 2024/25, and 

will not be available until FY 2025/26. 

** The Local Match for PL & SU Funds is included in the State Match for PL & SU Funds which is identified on 

page 3 and is detailed by Task in Tables 4-7. 

 

 

104



 Unified Planning Work Program 

  FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

62 

TABLE 4 Agency Participation (FY 2024/25) 
 

Task 

Federal State Local 

Total 
Amount to 
Consultant PL 

(CPG) 
SU 

(STBG) 
FDOT  

Soft Match1 
FCTD 
(TD) 

TPO 

Contract Number:        

1.1 Program Management $432,171 $0 $95,318 $0 $2,000 $529,489 $40,000 

1.2 UPWP Development $5,000 $0 $1,103 $0 $0 $6,103 $0 

2.1 Travel Demand Modeling $10,000 $0 $2,206 $0 $0 $12,206 $0 

2.2 GIS and Data Management $40,000 $0 $8,822 $0 $0 $48,822 $0 

2.3 Traffic Count Program Management $0 $75,000 $16,542 $0 $0 $91,542 $65,000 

2.4 Performance Measurement and 
Target Setting 

$20,000 $0 $4,411 $0 $0 $24,411 $0 

3.1 Long Range Transportation Planning  $35,000 $180,000 $47,419 $0 $0 $262,419 $150,000 

3.2 Transit Planning $70,000 $45,000 $25,364 $0 $0 $140,364 $0 

3.3 Transportation Improvement 
Program (TIP) 

$47,000 $0 $10,366 $0 $0 $57,366 $12,000 

3.4 Congestion Management Process 
(CMP) 

$10,000 $0 $2,206 $0 $0 $12,206 $0 

3.5 Bike Complete Streets Planning $30,000 $50,000 $17,644 $0 $0 $97,644 $0 

3.6 Freight Planning $20,000 $0 $4,411 $0 $0 $24,411 $0 

3.7 Safety and Security Planning $34,000 $0 $7,499 $0 $0 $41,499 $9,000 

3.8 Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) 
Program 

$0 $0 $0 $28,203 $0 $28,203 $2,000 

3.9 Environmental Planning $20,000 $0 $4,411 $0 $0 $24,411 $0 

3.10 ACES Vehicles Planning $20,000 $0 $4,411 $0 $0 $24,411 $0 

4.1 Models of Regional Planning 
Cooperation2 

$20,000 $0 $4,411 $0 $0 $24,411 $0 

4.2 Intergovernmental Planning and 
Coordination 

$35,000 $0 $7,719 $0 $0 $42,719 $10,000 

5.1 Public Participation, Education & 
Outreach 

$80,000 $50,000 $28,672 $0 $0 $158,672 $70,000 

Total         $928,171 $400,000 $292,936 $28,203 $2,000 $1,651,310 $358,000 
1FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3

105



 Unified Planning Work Program 

  FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

63 

TABLE 5 Agency Participation (FY 2025/26 
 

Task 

Federal State Local 

Total 
Amount to 
Consultant PL 

(CPG) 
SU 

(STBG) 
FDOT  

Soft Match1 
FCTD 
(TD) 

TPO 

Contract Number:        

1.1 Program Management $424,581 $0 $93,644 $0 $2,000 $520,225 $40,000 

1.2 UPWP Development $25,000 $0 $5,514 $0 $0 $30,514 $0 

2.1 Travel Demand Modeling $10,000 $0 $2,206 $0 $0 $12,206 $0 

2.2 GIS and Data Management $30,000 $0 $6,617 $0 $0 $36,617 $0 

2.3 Traffic Count Program Management $0 $50,000 $11,028 $0 $0 $61,028 $45,000 

2.4 Performance Measurement and 
Target Setting 

$20,000 $0 $4,411 $0 $0 $24,411 $0 

3.1 Long Range Transportation Planning  $35,000 $200,000 $51,831 $0 $0 $286,831 $150,000 

3.2 Transit Planning $80,000 $25,000 $23,158 $0 $0 $128,158 $0 

3.3 Transportation Improvement 
Program (TIP) 

$48,000 $0 $10,587 $0 $0 $58,587 $13,000 

3.4 Congestion Management Process 
(CMP) 

$10,000 $0 $2,206 $0 $0 $12,206 $0 

3.5 Bike Complete Streets Planning $80,000 $45,000 $27,569 $0 $0 $152,569 $40,000 

3.6 Freight Planning $20,000 $0 $4,411 $0 $0 $24,411 $0 

3.7 Safety and Security Planning $20,000 $0 $4,411 $0 $0 $24,411 $0 

3.8 Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) 
Program 

$0 $0 $0 $28,203 $0 $28,203 $2,000 

3.9 Environmental Planning $20,000 $0 $4,411 $0 $0 $24,411 $0 

3.10 ACES Vehicles Planning $20,000 $80,000 $22,056 $0 $0 $122,056 $30,000 

4.1 Models of Regional Planning 
Cooperation2 

$20,000 $0 $4,411 $0 $0 $24,411 $0 

4.2 Intergovernmental Planning and 
Coordination 

$37,000 $0 $8,161 $0 $0 $45,161 $12,000 

5.1 Public Participation, Education & 
Outreach 

$80,000 $0 $17,644 $0 $0 $97,644 $50,000 

Total         $979,581 $400,000 $304,275 $28,203 $2,000 $1,714,059 $382,000 
1FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3 

106



 Unified Planning Work Program 

  FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

64 

TABLE 6 Funding Sources (FY 2024/25) 

 

Task 
PL (CPG) SU 

(STBG) 
FCTD 
(TD) 

TPO 
Local 

Total 
(minus soft 

match) 

Amount to 
Consultant Federal State1 

Contract Number:        

1.1 Program Management $432,171 $95,318 $0 $0 $2,000 $434,171 $40,000 

1.2 UPWP Development $5,000 $1,103 $0 $0 $0 $5,000 $0 

2.1 Travel Demand Modeling $10,000 $2,206 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 

2.2 GIS and Data Management $40,000 $8,822 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 

2.3 Traffic Count Program Management $0 $16,542 $75,000 $0 $0 $75,000 $65,000 

2.4 Performance Measurement and Target Setting $20,000 $4,411 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 

3.1 Long Range Transportation Planning  $35,000 $47,419 $180,000 $0 $0 $215,000 $150,000 

3.2 Transit Planning $70,000 $25,364 $45,000 $0 $0 $115,000 $0 

3.3 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) $47,000 $10,366 $0 $0 $0 $47,000 $12,000 

3.4 Congestion Management Process (CMP) $10,000 $2,206 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 

3.5 Bike Complete Streets Planning $30,000 $17,644 $50,000 $0 $0 $80,000 $0 

3.6 Freight Planning $20,000 $4,411 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 

3.7 Safety and Security Planning $34,000 $7,499 $0 $0 $0 $34,000 $9,000 

3.8 Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) Program $0 $0 $0 $28,203 $0 $28,203 $2,000 

3.9 Environmental Planning $20,000 $4,411 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 

3.10 ACES Vehicles Planning $20,000 $4,411 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 

4.1 Models of Regional Planning Cooperation3 $20,000 $4,411 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 

4.2 Intergovernmental Planning and Coordination $35,000 $7,719 $0 $0 $0 $35,000 $10,000 

5.1 Public Participation, Education & Outreach $80,000 $28,672 $50,000 $0 $0 $130,000 $70,000 

Total         $928,171 $292,936 $400,000 $28,203 $2,000 $1,358,374 $358,000 

 
1Soft match which is the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3 
 

107



 Unified Planning Work Program 

  FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

65 

TABLE 7 Funding Sources (FY 2025/26) 

 

Task 
PL (CPG) SU 

(STBG) 
FCTD 
(TD) 

TPO 
Local 

Total 
(minus soft 

match) 

Amount to 
Consultant Federal State1 

Contract Number:        

1.1 Program Management $424,581 $93,644 $0 $0 $2,000 $426,581 $40,000 

1.2 UPWP Development $25,000 $5,514 $0 $0 $0 $25,000 $0 

2.1 Travel Demand Modeling $10,000 $2,206 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 

2.2 GIS and Data Management $30,000 $6,617 $0 $0 $0 $30,000 $0 

2.3 Traffic Count Program Management $0 $11,028 $50,000 $0 $0 $50,000 $45,000 

2.4 Performance Measurement and Target Setting $20,000 $4,411 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 

3.1 Long Range Transportation Planning  $35,000 $51,831 $200,000 $0 $0 $235,000 $150,000 

3.2 Transit Planning $80,000 $23,158 $25,000 $0 $0 $105,000 $0 

3.3 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) $48,000 $10,587 $0 $0 $0 $48,000 $13,000 

3.4 Congestion Management Process (CMP) $10,000 $2,206 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 

3.5 Bike Complete Streets Planning $80,000 $27,569 $45,000 $0 $0 $125,000 $40,000 

3.6 Freight Planning $20,000 $4,411 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 

3.7 Safety and Security Planning $20,000 $4,411 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 

3.8 Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) Program $0 $0 $0 $28,203 $0 $28,203 $2,000 

3.9 Environmental Planning $20,000 $4,411 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 

3.10 ACES Vehicles Planning $20,000 $22,056 $80,000 $0 $0 $100,000 $30,000 

4.1 Models of Regional Planning Cooperation3 $20,000 $4,411 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 

4.2 Intergovernmental Planning and Coordination $37,000 $8,161 $0 $0 $0 $37,000 $12,000 

5.1 Public Participation, Education & Outreach $80,000 $17,644 $0 $0 $0 $80,000 $50,000 

Total         $979,581 $304,275 $400,000 $28,203 $2,000 $1,409,784 $382,000 

1Soft match which is the FDOT non-cash match explained on page 3 
 
 

 

108



 Unified Planning Work Program 

  FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

APPENDIX A 

ACRONYM LIST 

 
 

 
 

109



 Unified Planning Work Program 

  FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

 

ACRONYM LIST 

 
 

Acronym Full Name 
  

ADA Americans with Disabilities Act 
ATMS Advanced Transportation Management System 
BIL Bipartisan Infrastructure Law 

BOCC St. Lucie Board of County Commissioners 
BPAC Bicycle-Pedestrian Advisory Committee  

CAC Citizens Advisory Committee 
CDMS Crash Data Management System 
CFDA Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 

CFR Code of Federal Regulations 
CPG Consolidated Planning Grant 

CMP Congestion Management Process 
CMS Congestion Management System 
CTC Community Transportation Coordinator 

CTST Community Traffic Safety Team 
ECG East Coast Greenway 

EJ Environmental Justice 
ERC Electronic Review Comments 
ETAT Environmental Technical Advisory Team 

ETDM Efficient Transportation Decision Making 
F.A.C. Florida Administrative Code 

FCTD Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged 
FDEP Florida Department of Environmental Protection 
FDOT Florida Department of Transportation 

FHWA Federal Highway Administration 
F.S. Florida Statute 

FSUTMS Florida Standard Urban Transportation Model Structure 
FTA Federal Transit Administration 
FTP Florida Transportation Plan 

FY Fiscal Year 
GIS Geographic Information System 

GOP Goal, Objective, and Policy 
ITS Intelligent Transportation System 

LCB Local Coordinating Board for the Transportation Disadvantaged 
LEP Limited English Proficiency 
LOPP List of Priority Projects 

LOS Level of Service 
LOSAS Level of Service Analysis System 

LRTP Long Range Transportation Plan 
MAP-21 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century 
MPA Metropolitan Planning Area 

MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization 
MPOAC Metropolitan Planning Organization Advisory Council 

PD&E Project Development & Environment 
RFP Request for Proposal 

110



 Unified Planning Work Program 

  FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 

 

 

 

PPP Public Participation Plan 

P&R Park & Ride 
RLRTP Regional Long Range Transportation Plan 

SIS Strategic Intermodal System 
SR State Road 
STBG/SU Surface Transportation Block Grant 

STIP State Transportation Improvement Program 
TAC Technical Advisory Committee 

TAD Traffic Analysis District 
TAP Transportation Alternatives Program 
TAZ Traffic Analysis Zone 

TCCME Treasure Coast Corridor Management Entity 
TCDMS Traffic Count Data Management System 

TCRPC Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council 
TCRPM Treasure Coast Regional Planning Model 
TCSH Treasure Coast Scenic Highway 

TCTAC Treasure Coast Technical Advisory Committee 
TCTC Treasure Coast Transportation Council 

TCTM Treasure Coast Transit Meeting 
TD Transportation Disadvantaged 

TDM Travel Demand Management 
TDP Transit Development Plan 
TDSP Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan 

TE Transportation Enhancement 
TIP Transportation Improvement Program 

Title VI Civil Rights/nondiscrimination law 
TMA Transportation Management Area 
TPO Transportation Planning Organization 

TRIP Transportation Regional Incentive Program 
UPWP Unified Planning Work Program 

USC United States Code 
US DOT United States Department of Transportation 
UZA Urbanized Area 

  

111



FY 2024/25 - FY 2025/26 Proposed Budget,

Historical Budgets, and Actual Expenses 

Expense Category

FY 2022/23 

Adopted 

Budget 

FY 2022/23 

Expenses

FY 2023/24 

Adopted 

Budget 

FY 2023/24   

Budget with 

Carryover

FY 2023/24 

Expenses

as of

3/1/2024

FY 2024/25 

Proposed 

Budget 

FY 2025/26 

Proposed 

Budget 

Staff Salaries $446,468 $382,458 $465,981 $529,991 $326,119 $512,690 $527,791

Staff Benefits $200,000 $169,800 $210,000 $240,200 $162,524 $292,689 $301,791

Professional Services/Consultants
1

$1,228,000 $382,160 $477,000 $1,322,840 $651,655 $358,000 $382,000

Travel $5,800 $2,343 $5,800 $9,257 $2,013 $5,800 $5,800

Postage $100 $0 $100 $200 $17 $100 $100

Equipment Rental $2,000 $1,802 $2,000 $2,198 $1,224 $1,900 $1,900

Advertising $1,890 $1,103 $1,890 $2,677 $486 $1,200 $1,200

General/Administrative Charges $55,000 $36,234 $55,000 $73,766 $27,748 $60,000 $60,000

Office Supplies $4,000 $1,810 $4,000 $6,190 $553 $4,000 $4,000

Equipment <5000 $1,000 $972 $1,000 $1,028 $744 $1,000 $1,000

Supplies-Computer $1,000 $0 $1,000 $2,000 $0 $1,000 $1,000

Operating Supplies $5,000 $934 $5,000 $9,066 $1,820 $5,000 $5,000

Books & Subscriptions $250 $84 $250 $416 $20 $200 $200

Training/Seminars $20,300 $0 $2,300 $22,600 $0 $2,500 $2,500

Communications $1,000 $717 $1,000 $1,283 $579 $900 $900

Utilities $5,000 $3,125 $5,000 $6,875 $2,448 $4,500 $4,500

Building Rent $115,000 $101,155 $121,000 $134,845 $77,517 $106,895 $110,102

Total $2,091,808 $1,084,697 $1,358,321 $2,365,432 $1,255,467 $1,358,374 $1,409,784

NOTES
1 
Includes HVAC, Janitorial, and Security Services

112



 

Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 

 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, Florida  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 

 
Board/Committee: St. Lucie TPO Board 

 
Meeting Date: April 3, 2024 

 
Item Number: 8c 

 
Item Title:  Resolution 24-01 for the Metropolitan Planning 

Organization (MPO) Agreement 
 

Item Origination: Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) 

 
UPWP Reference: Task 1.1 – Program Management 

 
Requested Action: Adopt Resolution 24-01, adopt with conditions, or 

do not adopt. 
 

Staff Recommendations: Because Resolution No. 24-01 facilitates the 
receipt of Federal and State funds to support the 

implementation of the FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 
UPWP, it is recommended that the Board adopt 

Resolution No. 24-01 to authorize the 
TPO Executive Director to execute the 

MPO Agreement and subsequent amendments 
and documents required for the receipt of Federal 

and State funds to support the implementation of 

the UPWP. 
 

 
Attachments 

· Staff Report 
· Resolution No. 24-01 

113



 

Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 

 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, Florida  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

TO: St. Lucie TPO Board 

 
FROM: Peter Buchwald 

 Executive Director 
 

DATE: March 27, 2024 
 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 24-01 for the Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (MPO) Agreement 

 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) requires the St. Lucie TPO 

to execute an MPO Agreement for the TPO to receive Federal and State funds 

to support the implementation of the TPO’s Unified Planning Work Program 
(UPWP). The MPO Agreement is executed every two years prior to the start of 

the implementation of the two-year UPWP. The TPO Board will be considering 
the adoption of the FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 UPWP, the implementation of 

which will start on July 1st.  
 

ANALYSIS 
 

The attached draft Resolution No. 24-01 has been prepared which authorizes 
the TPO Executive Director to execute an MPO Agreement and subsequent 

agreements and documents required for the receipt of Federal and State funds 
to support the implementation of the FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 UPWP to be 

considered for adoption by the TPO Board. The draft resolution was submitted 
to the TPO Attorney for legal review as to form and correctness.  

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

Because Resolution No. 24-01 facilitates the receipt of Federal and State funds 
to support the implementation of the FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 UPWP, it is 

recommended that the Board adopt Resolution No. 24-01 to authorize the TPO 
Executive Director to execute the MPO Agreement and subsequent 

amendments and documents required for the receipt of Federal and State 
funds to support the implementation of the UPWP. 

114



 

Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 

 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, FL  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-01 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF THE ST. LUCIE TRANSPORTATION 

PLANNING ORGANIZATION, HEREINAFTER "BOARD", AUTHORIZING 
THE EXECUTION OF A METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

(MPO) AGREEMENT WITH THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION, HEREINAFTER "FDOT", FOR THE RECEIPT OF 

FEDERAL AND STATE FUNDS TO SUPPORT THE IMPLEMENTATION OF 
THE FY 2024/25 – FY 2025/26 UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM 

(UPWP).  
 

 WHEREAS, the BOARD is eligible to receive Federal and State funds to 
undertake metropolitan planning activities in the St. Lucie County portion of 

the Port St. Lucie Urbanized Area as authorized by Federal and State 

regulations; and, 
 

 WHEREAS, the BOARD and FDOT have the authority to enter into an 
agreement pursuant to 23 United States Code (USC) 134, 23 Code of Federal 

Regulations (CFR) 450, and Section 339.175, Florida Statutes (FS) which 
identifies the responsibilities for cooperatively carrying out the Federal and 

State-funded portions of the Metropolitan Planning Process and accomplishing 
the transportation planning requirements of State and Federal law; and, 

 
 WHEREAS, FDOT requests the BOARD enter into an MPO Agreement 

for financial assistance through FDOT in the form of Federal and State funds 
to the BOARD for the completion of the transportation-related planning 

activities set forth in the UPWP adopted by the BOARD which will be attached 
and incorporated into the MPO Agreement as an exhibit; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the MPO Agreement will state the terms and conditions 
upon which Federal and State funds will be provided and set forth the manner 

in which work tasks and subtasks within the UPWP will be undertaken and 
completed. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD THAT: 

 
1. The BOARD's Registered Agent in Florida is the TPO Executive 

Director. The Registered Agent's address is 466 SW Port St. Lucie 
Boulevard, Suite 111, Port St. Lucie, Florida, 34953. 

 
2. The BOARD authorizes the TPO Executive Director to apply for 

Federal and State funds to support the implementation of the 
UPWP. 

115



Resolution No. 24-01 DRAFT Page 2 of 2 

 

 

3. The BOARD authorizes the TPO Executive Director to execute the 
MPO Agreement with FDOT for the receipt of Federal and State 

funds to support the implementation of the UPWP and any and all 
subsequent amendments to the MPO Agreement. 

 
4. The BOARD authorizes the TPO Executive Director to execute any 

and all other subsequent agreements or contracts which are 
required in connection with the application for and receipt of 

Federal and State funds to support the implementation of the 
UPWP. 

 
5. The BOARD authorizes the TPO Executive Director to execute any 

and all assurances, reimbursement invoices, warranties, 
certifications, and any other documents which may be required in 

connection with the application for and receipt of Federal and State 

funds to support the implementation of the UPWP. 
 

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED this 3rd day of April, 2024. 
 

ST. LUCIE TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
 

 
  

Chris Dzadovsky, Chairman 
 

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM 
  AND CORRECTNESS: 

 
 

    

Kyle Bowman  Ciara Forbes 
Operations Administrator  TPO/Assistant County Attorney 

116



 

Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 

 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, FL  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
 

Board/Committee:  St. Lucie TPO Board 
 

Meeting Date: April 3, 2024 

 
Item Number: 9a 

 
Item Title: Community Profiles Update 

 
Item Origination: Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) and 

Federal Title VI Requirements 
 

UPWP Reference: Task 6.1: Public Involvement 
 

Requested Action: Discuss and provide comments to Staff. 
 

Staff Recommendation: It is recommended that comments be provided 
regarding the Community Profiles Update. 

 

 
Attachments 

· Staff Report 
· Community Profiles Maps 
 

117



 

Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 

 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, FL  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

TO: St. Lucie TPO Board 

 
THROUGH: Peter Buchwald 

 Executive Director 
 

FROM: Yi Ding 
 Transportation Systems Manager 

 
DATE: March 27, 2024 

 
SUBJECT: Community Profiles Update 

 

 
BACKGROUND 

 

A Federal Title VI requirement for metropolitan planning organizations (MPOs) 
is to ensure traditionally underserved communities are provided with various 

opportunities to meaningfully engage in the transportation planning process. 
In addition, it is required that there is not a significant disparity of impacts in 

accessibility to and delivery of transportation facilities and services in an 
MPO area.  

 
Community Profiles of the TPO area were initially developed in 2013 after the 

2010 Census. The FY 2022/23 - FY2023/24 Unified Planning Work Program 
(UPWP) includes an update of the Community Profiles subsequent to the 

2020 Census. 
 

 
ANALYSIS 

 

The attached map series was developed for the St. Lucie TPO area to identify 
disadvantaged communities and ensure these populations are provided with 

various opportunities to meaningfully engage in the transportation planning 
process and that there is not a significant disparity of impacts in accessibility 

to and delivery of transportation facilities and services. 
 

2020 Census data and 2018-2022 American Community Survey data were 
utilized in the Geographic Information System (GIS) to identify Census Block 

118



March 27, 2024 Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Groups where one or more of the following thresholds (1.5 times of the County 
average) were met:  

 

Variables 
County 

Average 

1.5x 

Threshold 

% minority population 46.2% 69% 

% limited English proficiency (LEP) population 7.3% 11% 

% population with incomes below poverty line 12.5% 19% 

% population 20-64 years old with disabilities 11.5% 17% 

% households without a vehicle 4.5% 7% 

% senior (65+) population 24.4% 37% 

 
The thresholds were established based on industry standards, previous 

studies, and a certain amount of discretion. Generally, larger multipliers result 
in smaller areas selected. Setting a threshold of 1.5 times the County average 

ensured the selected areas had statistical significance and resulted in a 
reasonable number of block groups selected. Layers of the above six variables 

were overlain on a map of the TPO area to determine the disadvantaged score 

for each Census Block Group as depicted in the attached Community Profiles 
Map Series.  

 
By overlaying proposed projects from the TPO’s Transportation Improvement 

Program (TIP) and the Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) on the 
Community Profiles Maps, it may be determined if significant disparities of 

impacts in accessibility to and delivery of transportation facilities and services 
exist among these communities. In addition, the maps allow future outreach 

efforts to be tailored to specific communities to optimize the results of these 
efforts and to obtain comprehensive and meaningful public input.  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

It is recommended that comments be provided regarding the Community 

Profiles Update. 
 

119



§̈¦95

ST. LUCIE

¬«70

MARTIN

INDIAN RIVER

¬«70

£¤1

§̈¦95

I-
9

5

U
S

 1

ORANGE AVE

FLORIDA'S TURNPIKE

OKEECHO
BEE R

D

2
5

T
H

 S
T

S
H

IN
N

 R
D

MIDWAY RD

BECKER RD

S
R

 A
1
A
 S

O
U

T
HIN

D
IA

N
 R

IV
E

R
 D

R

K
IN

G
S

 H
W

Y

ANGLE RD

R
A

N
G

E
 L

IN
E

 R
D

G
LA

D
ES

 C
U
T-

O
FF R

D

INDRIO RD

C
A

R
L
T

O
N

 R
D

J
E

N
K

IN
S

 R
D

CROSSTOWN PKWY

S
N

E
E

D
 R

D

S
E

L
V

IT
Z

 R
D

O
L
D

 D
IX

IE
 H

W
Y

O
L

E
A

N
D

E
R

 A
V

E

N
-S

 R
O

A
D

 A

J
O

H
N

S
T

O
N

 R
D

S
R

 A
1
A

 N
O

R
T

H

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 P
K

W
Y

M
C

C
A

R
T

Y
 R

D

PAAR DR

F
LO

R
E

S
TA

 D
R

1
3

T
H

 S
T

S
A

V
O

N
A

 B
L
V

D

PORT ST LUCIE BLVD

A
IR

O
S

O
 B

L
V

D

B
A
Y

S
H

O
R

E
 B

LV
D

WALTON RD

PICOS RD

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 B
L
V

D

EDWARDS RD

ST LUCIE BLVD

GATLIN BLVD

C
A

L
IF

O
R

N
IA

 B
L
V

D

F
F

A
 R

D

N
-S

 R
O

A
D

 B
AVENUE Q

D
A

R
W

IN
 B

L
V

D

E-W ROAD 2

S
T

 J
A

M
E

S
 D

R

EASY ST

JUANITA AVE

R
O

S
S

E
R

 B
L
V

D

AVENUE D

7
T

H
 S

T

VIRGINIA AVE

DISCOVERY WAY

C
A

S
H

M
E

R
E

 B
LV

D

A
R

T
E

R
IA

L
 A

H
E

A
D

E
R

 C
A

N
A

L
 R

D

DEL RIO BLVD

N
 K

IN
G

S
 H

W
Y

E
M

E
R

S
O

N
 A

V
E

S
A

N
D

IA
 A

V
E

IM
PORT DR

P
E

A
C

O
C

K
 B

L
V

D

C
A

M
E

O
 B

LV
D

G
IL

S
O

N
 R

D

G
R

E
E

N
 R

IV
E

R
 P

K
W

YTULIP BLVD

GRAND DR

E
A

S
T
 T

O
R

IN
O

 P
K

W
YT

O
R

IN
O

 P
K

W
Y

CORTEZ BLVD

STONY CREEK WAY

V
O

L
U

C
IA

 D
R

NORTH BLVD

L
E

N
N

A
R

D
 R

D

C
A

M
P

B
E

L
L
 R

D

BINNEY DR

W
E
S
TC

LI
FFE L

N

T
A

Y
L
O

R
 D

A
IR

Y
 R

D

C
U

R
T

IS
 S

T

D
E

L R
IO

 B
LV

D

S
R

 A
1

A
 S

O
U

T
H

0 3 61.5 Miles

Minority Population

±

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018-2022)

Percentage of "Minority Population" 

meet the threshold of 69.3%

120



§̈¦95

ST. LUCIE

¬«70

MARTIN

INDIAN RIVER

¬«70

£¤1

§̈¦95

I-
9

5

U
S

 1

ORANGE AVE

FLORIDA'S TURNPIKE

OKEECHO
BEE R

D

2
5

T
H

 S
T

S
H

IN
N

 R
D

MIDWAY RD

BECKER RD

S
R

 A
1
A
 S

O
U

T
HIN

D
IA

N
 R

IV
E

R
 D

R

K
IN

G
S

 H
W

Y

ANGLE RD

R
A

N
G

E
 L

IN
E

 R
D

G
LA

D
ES

 C
U
T-

O
FF R

D

INDRIO RD

C
A

R
L
T

O
N

 R
D

J
E

N
K

IN
S

 R
D

CROSSTOWN PKWY

S
N

E
E

D
 R

D

S
E

L
V

IT
Z

 R
D

O
L
D

 D
IX

IE
 H

W
Y

O
L

E
A

N
D

E
R

 A
V

E

N
-S

 R
O

A
D

 A

J
O

H
N

S
T

O
N

 R
D

S
R

 A
1
A

 N
O

R
T

H

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 P
K

W
Y

M
C

C
A

R
T

Y
 R

D

PAAR DR

F
LO

R
E

S
TA

 D
R

1
3

T
H

 S
T

S
A

V
O

N
A

 B
L
V

D

PORT ST LUCIE BLVD

A
IR

O
S

O
 B

L
V

D

B
A
Y

S
H

O
R

E
 B

LV
D

WALTON RD

PICOS RD

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 B
L
V

D

EDWARDS RD

ST LUCIE BLVD

GATLIN BLVD

C
A

L
IF

O
R

N
IA

 B
L
V

D

F
F

A
 R

D

N
-S

 R
O

A
D

 B
AVENUE Q

D
A

R
W

IN
 B

L
V

D

E-W ROAD 2

S
T

 J
A

M
E

S
 D

R

EASY ST

JUANITA AVE

R
O

S
S

E
R

 B
L
V

D

AVENUE D

7
T

H
 S

T

VIRGINIA AVE

DISCOVERY WAY

C
A

S
H

M
E

R
E

 B
LV

D

A
R

T
E

R
IA

L
 A

H
E

A
D

E
R

 C
A

N
A

L
 R

D

DEL RIO BLVD

N
 K

IN
G

S
 H

W
Y

E
M

E
R

S
O

N
 A

V
E

S
A

N
D

IA
 A

V
E

IM
PORT DR

P
E

A
C

O
C

K
 B

L
V

D

C
A

M
E

O
 B

LV
D

G
IL

S
O

N
 R

D

G
R

E
E

N
 R

IV
E

R
 P

K
W

YTULIP BLVD

GRAND DR

E
A

S
T
 T

O
R

IN
O

 P
K

W
YT

O
R

IN
O

 P
K

W
Y

CORTEZ BLVD

STONY CREEK WAY

V
O

L
U

C
IA

 D
R

NORTH BLVD

L
E

N
N

A
R

D
 R

D

C
A

M
P

B
E

L
L
 R

D

BINNEY DR

W
E
S
TC

LI
FFE L

N

T
A

Y
L
O

R
 D

A
IR

Y
 R

D

C
U

R
T

IS
 S

T

D
E

L R
IO

 B
LV

D

S
R

 A
1

A
 S

O
U

T
H

0 3 61.5 Miles

Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Population

±

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018-2022)

Percentage of "LEP Population" 

meet the threshold of 10.9%

121



§̈¦95

ST. LUCIE

¬«70

MARTIN

INDIAN RIVER

¬«70

£¤1

§̈¦95

I-
9

5

U
S

 1

ORANGE AVE

FLORIDA'S TURNPIKE

OKEECHO
BEE R

D

2
5

T
H

 S
T

S
H

IN
N

 R
D

MIDWAY RD

BECKER RD

S
R

 A
1
A
 S

O
U

T
HIN

D
IA

N
 R

IV
E

R
 D

R

K
IN

G
S

 H
W

Y

ANGLE RD

R
A

N
G

E
 L

IN
E

 R
D

G
LA

D
ES

 C
U
T-

O
FF R

D

INDRIO RD

C
A

R
L
T

O
N

 R
D

J
E

N
K

IN
S

 R
D

CROSSTOWN PKWY

S
N

E
E

D
 R

D

S
E

L
V

IT
Z

 R
D

O
L
D

 D
IX

IE
 H

W
Y

O
L

E
A

N
D

E
R

 A
V

E

N
-S

 R
O

A
D

 A

J
O

H
N

S
T

O
N

 R
D

S
R

 A
1
A

 N
O

R
T

H

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 P
K

W
Y

M
C

C
A

R
T

Y
 R

D

PAAR DR

F
LO

R
E

S
TA

 D
R

1
3

T
H

 S
T

S
A

V
O

N
A

 B
L
V

D

PORT ST LUCIE BLVD

A
IR

O
S

O
 B

L
V

D

B
A
Y

S
H

O
R

E
 B

LV
D

WALTON RD

PICOS RD

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 B
L
V

D

EDWARDS RD

ST LUCIE BLVD

GATLIN BLVD

C
A

L
IF

O
R

N
IA

 B
L
V

D

F
F

A
 R

D

N
-S

 R
O

A
D

 B
AVENUE Q

D
A

R
W

IN
 B

L
V

D

E-W ROAD 2

S
T

 J
A

M
E

S
 D

R

EASY ST

JUANITA AVE

R
O

S
S

E
R

 B
L
V

D

AVENUE D

7
T

H
 S

T

VIRGINIA AVE

DISCOVERY WAY

C
A

S
H

M
E

R
E

 B
LV

D

A
R

T
E

R
IA

L
 A

H
E

A
D

E
R

 C
A

N
A

L
 R

D

DEL RIO BLVD

N
 K

IN
G

S
 H

W
Y

E
M

E
R

S
O

N
 A

V
E

S
A

N
D

IA
 A

V
E

IM
PORT DR

P
E

A
C

O
C

K
 B

L
V

D

C
A

M
E

O
 B

LV
D

G
IL

S
O

N
 R

D

G
R

E
E

N
 R

IV
E

R
 P

K
W

YTULIP BLVD

GRAND DR

E
A

S
T
 T

O
R

IN
O

 P
K

W
YT

O
R

IN
O

 P
K

W
Y

CORTEZ BLVD

STONY CREEK WAY

V
O

L
U

C
IA

 D
R

NORTH BLVD

L
E

N
N

A
R

D
 R

D

C
A

M
P

B
E

L
L
 R

D

BINNEY DR

W
E
S
TC

LI
FFE L

N

T
A

Y
L
O

R
 D

A
IR

Y
 R

D

C
U

R
T

IS
 S

T

D
E

L R
IO

 B
LV

D

S
R

 A
1

A
 S

O
U

T
H

0 3 61.5 Miles

Population with Income below Poverty Line

±

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018-2022)

Percentage of "Population in Poverty" 

meet the threshold of 18.7%

122



§̈¦95

ST. LUCIE

¬«70

MARTIN

INDIAN RIVER

¬«70

£¤1

§̈¦95

I-
9

5

U
S

 1

ORANGE AVE

FLORIDA'S TURNPIKE

OKEECHO
BEE R

D

2
5

T
H

 S
T

S
H

IN
N

 R
D

MIDWAY RD

BECKER RD

S
R

 A
1
A
 S

O
U

T
HIN

D
IA

N
 R

IV
E

R
 D

R

K
IN

G
S

 H
W

Y

ANGLE RD

R
A

N
G

E
 L

IN
E

 R
D

G
LA

D
ES

 C
U
T-

O
FF R

D

INDRIO RD

C
A

R
L
T

O
N

 R
D

J
E

N
K

IN
S

 R
D

CROSSTOWN PKWY

S
N

E
E

D
 R

D

S
E

L
V

IT
Z

 R
D

O
L
D

 D
IX

IE
 H

W
Y

O
L

E
A

N
D

E
R

 A
V

E

N
-S

 R
O

A
D

 A

J
O

H
N

S
T

O
N

 R
D

S
R

 A
1
A

 N
O

R
T

H

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 P
K

W
Y

M
C

C
A

R
T

Y
 R

D

PAAR DR

F
LO

R
E

S
TA

 D
R

1
3

T
H

 S
T

S
A

V
O

N
A

 B
L
V

D

PORT ST LUCIE BLVD

A
IR

O
S

O
 B

L
V

D

B
A
Y

S
H

O
R

E
 B

LV
D

WALTON RD

PICOS RD

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 B
L
V

D

EDWARDS RD

ST LUCIE BLVD

GATLIN BLVD

C
A

L
IF

O
R

N
IA

 B
L
V

D

F
F

A
 R

D

N
-S

 R
O

A
D

 B
AVENUE Q

D
A

R
W

IN
 B

L
V

D

E-W ROAD 2

S
T

 J
A

M
E

S
 D

R

EASY ST

JUANITA AVE

R
O

S
S

E
R

 B
L
V

D

AVENUE D

7
T

H
 S

T

VIRGINIA AVE

DISCOVERY WAY

C
A

S
H

M
E

R
E

 B
LV

D

A
R

T
E

R
IA

L
 A

H
E

A
D

E
R

 C
A

N
A

L
 R

D

DEL RIO BLVD

N
 K

IN
G

S
 H

W
Y

E
M

E
R

S
O

N
 A

V
E

S
A

N
D

IA
 A

V
E

IM
PORT DR

P
E

A
C

O
C

K
 B

L
V

D

C
A

M
E

O
 B

LV
D

G
IL

S
O

N
 R

D

G
R

E
E

N
 R

IV
E

R
 P

K
W

YTULIP BLVD

GRAND DR

E
A

S
T
 T

O
R

IN
O

 P
K

W
YT

O
R

IN
O

 P
K

W
Y

CORTEZ BLVD

STONY CREEK WAY

V
O

L
U

C
IA

 D
R

NORTH BLVD

L
E

N
N

A
R

D
 R

D

C
A

M
P

B
E

L
L
 R

D

BINNEY DR

W
E
S
TC

LI
FFE L

N

T
A

Y
L
O

R
 D

A
IR

Y
 R

D

C
U

R
T

IS
 S

T

D
E

L R
IO

 B
LV

D

S
R

 A
1

A
 S

O
U

T
H

0 3 61.5 Miles

Population 20-64 Years with Disabilities

±

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018-2022)

Percentage of "Population with Disabilities" 

meet the threshold of 17.3%

123



§̈¦95

ST. LUCIE

¬«70

MARTIN

INDIAN RIVER

¬«70

£¤1

§̈¦95

I-
9

5

U
S

 1

ORANGE AVE

FLORIDA'S TURNPIKE

OKEECHO
BEE R

D

2
5

T
H

 S
T

S
H

IN
N

 R
D

MIDWAY RD

BECKER RD

S
R

 A
1
A
 S

O
U

T
HIN

D
IA

N
 R

IV
E

R
 D

R

K
IN

G
S

 H
W

Y

ANGLE RD

R
A

N
G

E
 L

IN
E

 R
D

G
LA

D
ES

 C
U
T-

O
FF R

D

INDRIO RD

C
A

R
L
T

O
N

 R
D

J
E

N
K

IN
S

 R
D

CROSSTOWN PKWY

S
N

E
E

D
 R

D

S
E

L
V

IT
Z

 R
D

O
L
D

 D
IX

IE
 H

W
Y

O
L

E
A

N
D

E
R

 A
V

E

N
-S

 R
O

A
D

 A

J
O

H
N

S
T

O
N

 R
D

S
R

 A
1
A

 N
O

R
T

H

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 P
K

W
Y

M
C

C
A

R
T

Y
 R

D

PAAR DR

F
LO

R
E

S
TA

 D
R

1
3

T
H

 S
T

S
A

V
O

N
A

 B
L
V

D

PORT ST LUCIE BLVD

A
IR

O
S

O
 B

L
V

D

B
A
Y

S
H

O
R

E
 B

LV
D

WALTON RD

PICOS RD

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 B
L
V

D

EDWARDS RD

ST LUCIE BLVD

GATLIN BLVD

C
A

L
IF

O
R

N
IA

 B
L
V

D

F
F

A
 R

D

N
-S

 R
O

A
D

 B
AVENUE Q

D
A

R
W

IN
 B

L
V

D

E-W ROAD 2

S
T

 J
A

M
E

S
 D

R

EASY ST

JUANITA AVE

R
O

S
S

E
R

 B
L
V

D

AVENUE D

7
T

H
 S

T

VIRGINIA AVE

DISCOVERY WAY

C
A

S
H

M
E

R
E

 B
LV

D

A
R

T
E

R
IA

L
 A

H
E

A
D

E
R

 C
A

N
A

L
 R

D

DEL RIO BLVD

N
 K

IN
G

S
 H

W
Y

E
M

E
R

S
O

N
 A

V
E

S
A

N
D

IA
 A

V
E

IM
PORT DR

P
E

A
C

O
C

K
 B

L
V

D

C
A

M
E

O
 B

LV
D

G
IL

S
O

N
 R

D

G
R

E
E

N
 R

IV
E

R
 P

K
W

YTULIP BLVD

GRAND DR

E
A

S
T
 T

O
R

IN
O

 P
K

W
YT

O
R

IN
O

 P
K

W
Y

CORTEZ BLVD

STONY CREEK WAY

V
O

L
U

C
IA

 D
R

NORTH BLVD

L
E

N
N

A
R

D
 R

D

C
A

M
P

B
E

L
L
 R

D

BINNEY DR

W
E
S
TC

LI
FFE L

N

T
A

Y
L
O

R
 D

A
IR

Y
 R

D

C
U

R
T

IS
 S

T

D
E

L R
IO

 B
LV

D

S
R

 A
1

A
 S

O
U

T
H

0 3 61.5 Miles

Households without Vehicle

±

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018-2022)

Percentage of "Household without Vehicle" 

meet the threshold of 6.8%

124



§̈¦95

ST. LUCIE

¬«70

MARTIN

INDIAN RIVER

¬«70

£¤1

§̈¦95

I-
9

5

U
S

 1

ORANGE AVE

FLORIDA'S TURNPIKE

OKEECHO
BEE R

D

2
5

T
H

 S
T

S
H

IN
N

 R
D

MIDWAY RD

BECKER RD

S
R

 A
1
A
 S

O
U

T
HIN

D
IA

N
 R

IV
E

R
 D

R

K
IN

G
S

 H
W

Y

ANGLE RD

R
A

N
G

E
 L

IN
E

 R
D

G
LA

D
ES

 C
U
T-

O
FF R

D

INDRIO RD

C
A

R
L
T

O
N

 R
D

J
E

N
K

IN
S

 R
D

CROSSTOWN PKWY

S
N

E
E

D
 R

D

S
E

L
V

IT
Z

 R
D

O
L
D

 D
IX

IE
 H

W
Y

O
L

E
A

N
D

E
R

 A
V

E

N
-S

 R
O

A
D

 A

J
O

H
N

S
T

O
N

 R
D

S
R

 A
1
A

 N
O

R
T

H

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 P
K

W
Y

M
C

C
A

R
T

Y
 R

D

PAAR DR

F
LO

R
E

S
TA

 D
R

1
3

T
H

 S
T

S
A

V
O

N
A

 B
L
V

D

PORT ST LUCIE BLVD

A
IR

O
S

O
 B

L
V

D

B
A
Y

S
H

O
R

E
 B

LV
D

WALTON RD

PICOS RD

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 B
L
V

D

EDWARDS RD

ST LUCIE BLVD

GATLIN BLVD

C
A

L
IF

O
R

N
IA

 B
L
V

D

F
F

A
 R

D

N
-S

 R
O

A
D

 B
AVENUE Q

D
A

R
W

IN
 B

L
V

D

E-W ROAD 2

S
T

 J
A

M
E

S
 D

R

EASY ST

JUANITA AVE

R
O

S
S

E
R

 B
L
V

D

AVENUE D

7
T

H
 S

T

VIRGINIA AVE

DISCOVERY WAY

C
A

S
H

M
E

R
E

 B
LV

D

A
R

T
E

R
IA

L
 A

H
E

A
D

E
R

 C
A

N
A

L
 R

D

DEL RIO BLVD

N
 K

IN
G

S
 H

W
Y

E
M

E
R

S
O

N
 A

V
E

S
A

N
D

IA
 A

V
E

IM
PORT DR

P
E

A
C

O
C

K
 B

L
V

D

C
A

M
E

O
 B

LV
D

G
IL

S
O

N
 R

D

G
R

E
E

N
 R

IV
E

R
 P

K
W

YTULIP BLVD

GRAND DR

E
A

S
T
 T

O
R

IN
O

 P
K

W
YT

O
R

IN
O

 P
K

W
Y

CORTEZ BLVD

STONY CREEK WAY

V
O

L
U

C
IA

 D
R

NORTH BLVD

L
E

N
N

A
R

D
 R

D

C
A

M
P

B
E

L
L
 R

D

BINNEY DR

W
E
S
TC

LI
FFE L

N

T
A

Y
L
O

R
 D

A
IR

Y
 R

D

C
U

R
T

IS
 S

T

D
E

L R
IO

 B
LV

D

S
R

 A
1

A
 S

O
U

T
H

0 3 61.5 Miles

Senior Population (65 years and older)

±

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018-2022)

Percentage of "Senior Population" 

meet the threshold of 36.6%

125



§̈¦95

ST. LUCIE

¬«70

MARTIN

INDIAN RIVER

¬«70

£¤1

§̈¦95

I-
9

5

U
S

 1

ORANGE AVE

FLORIDA'S TURNPIKE

OKEECHO
BEE R

D

2
5

T
H

 S
T

S
H

IN
N

 R
D

MIDWAY RD

BECKER RD

S
R

 A
1
A
 S

O
U

T
HIN

D
IA

N
 R

IV
E

R
 D

R

K
IN

G
S

 H
W

Y

ANGLE RD

R
A

N
G

E
 L

IN
E

 R
D

G
LA

D
ES

 C
U
T-

O
FF R

D

INDRIO RD

C
A

R
L
T

O
N

 R
D

J
E

N
K

IN
S

 R
D

CROSSTOWN PKWY

S
N

E
E

D
 R

D

S
E

L
V

IT
Z

 R
D

O
L
D

 D
IX

IE
 H

W
Y

O
L

E
A

N
D

E
R

 A
V

E

N
-S

 R
O

A
D

 A

J
O

H
N

S
T

O
N

 R
D

S
R

 A
1
A

 N
O

R
T

H

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 P
K

W
Y

M
C

C
A

R
T

Y
 R

D

PAAR DR

F
LO

R
E

S
TA

 D
R

1
3

T
H

 S
T

S
A

V
O

N
A

 B
L
V

D

PORT ST LUCIE BLVD

A
IR

O
S

O
 B

L
V

D

B
A
Y

S
H

O
R

E
 B

LV
D

WALTON RD

PICOS RD

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 B
L
V

D

EDWARDS RD

ST LUCIE BLVD

GATLIN BLVD

C
A

L
IF

O
R

N
IA

 B
L
V

D

F
F

A
 R

D

N
-S

 R
O

A
D

 B
AVENUE Q

D
A

R
W

IN
 B

L
V

D

E-W ROAD 2

S
T

 J
A

M
E

S
 D

R

EASY ST

JUANITA AVE

R
O

S
S

E
R

 B
L
V

D

AVENUE D

7
T

H
 S

T

VIRGINIA AVE

DISCOVERY WAY

C
A

S
H

M
E

R
E

 B
LV

D

A
R

T
E

R
IA

L
 A

H
E

A
D

E
R

 C
A

N
A

L
 R

D

DEL RIO BLVD

N
 K

IN
G

S
 H

W
Y

E
M

E
R

S
O

N
 A

V
E

S
A

N
D

IA
 A

V
E

IM
PORT DR

P
E

A
C

O
C

K
 B

L
V

D

C
A

M
E

O
 B

LV
D

G
IL

S
O

N
 R

D

G
R

E
E

N
 R

IV
E

R
 P

K
W

YTULIP BLVD

GRAND DR

E
A

S
T
 T

O
R

IN
O

 P
K

W
YT

O
R

IN
O

 P
K

W
Y

CORTEZ BLVD

STONY CREEK WAY

V
O

L
U

C
IA

 D
R

NORTH BLVD

L
E

N
N

A
R

D
 R

D

C
A

M
P

B
E

L
L
 R

D

BINNEY DR

W
E
S
TC

LI
FFE L

N

T
A

Y
L
O

R
 D

A
IR

Y
 R

D

C
U

R
T

IS
 S

T

D
E

L R
IO

 B
LV

D

S
R

 A
1

A
 S

O
U

T
H

0 3 61.5 Miles

Disadvantaged Communities

±

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018-2022)

Disadvantaged Score
2 3 4 5

126


	April 3, 2024 TPO Board Regular Meeting Agenda
	Board Meeting 2-7-2024 FINAL DRAFT
	TAP Agenda Item Summary for Board for 04-03-24
	TAP Staff Report for Board for 04-03-24
	Sunrise Boulevard Sidewalk Page from St. Lucie TPO TA List of Priority Projects 2023-24 ADOPTED 06-07-23
	UPWP Agenda Item Summary for TPO Board April 2024 FINAL
	UPWP staff report for TPO Board - April 2024 FINAL
	St. Lucie TPO FY 2024-25 - FY 2025-26 UPWP DRAFT FOR BOARD
	I. INTRODUCTION
	II. ORGANIZATION AND MANAGEMENT
	III. WORK PROGRAM ELEMENTS AND TASKS
	ELEMENT 1: PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION
	ELEMENT 2: MODELING, GIS, DATA MANAGEMENT, AND PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT
	ELEMENT 3: RECURRING AND SYSTEMS AND PROJECT PLANNING
	ELEMENT 4: REGIONAL AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL PLANNING AND COORDINATION
	ELEMENT 5: PUBLIC PARTICIPATION, EDUCATION & OUTREACH

	Task 1.1 Program Management
	Task 1.2 UPWP Development
	Task 2.1 Travel Demand Modeling
	Task 2.2 GIS and Data Management
	Task 2.3 Traffic Count Program Management
	Task 2.4 Performance Measurement and Target Setting
	Task 3.1 Long Range Transportation Planning 
	Task 3.2 Transit Planning
	Task 3.3 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)
	Task 3.4 Congestion Management Process (CMP)
	Task 3.5 Bicycle-Pedestrian/Complete Streets Planning
	Task 3.6 Freight Planning
	Task 3.7 Safety and Security Planning
	Task 3.8 Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) Program 
	Task 3.9 Environmental Planning
	Task 3.10 Automated/Connected/Electric/Shared-Use (ACES) 
	Vehicles Planning
	Task 4.1 Models of Regional Planning Cooperation
	Task 4.2 Intergovernmental Planning and Coordination
	Task 5.1 Public Participation, Education & Outreach
	IV. SUMMARY BUDGET TABLES
	TABLE 1 Work Task Summary
	TABLE 2 Revenues (FY 2024/25)
	TABLE 3 Revenues (FY 2025/26)
	TABLE 4 Agency Participation (FY 2024/25)
	TABLE 5 Agency Participation (FY 2025/26
	TABLE 6 Funding Sources (FY 2024/25)
	TABLE 7 Funding Sources (FY 2025/26)
	UAPPENDIX A
	ACRONYM LIST
	UACRONYM LIST



	FY 2024-25 - FY 2025-26 Budget, Historical Budgets, and Actual Expenses DRAFT FOR BOARD
	With MC BOCC

	Resolution No. 24-01 Agenda Item Summary for Board for 04-03-24
	Resolution No. 24-01 Staff Report for Board for 04-03-24
	Resolution No. 24-01 FY 2024-25 - FY 2025-26 MPO Agreement for Federal and State Funds
	Community Profiles Update Agenda Item Summary for Board for 04-03-24
	Community Profiles Update Staff Report for Board for 04-03-24
	Community Profiles Maps
	Minority
	LEP
	Poverty Population
	Disability
	No Car
	Senoir
	Disadvantage Community




